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Strategic Report

Results for the year ended 30 September 2015
HIGHLIGHTS

Good growth in revenues and profits and strong cash generation alongside significant operational
enhancements

» Reported revenue up 9% to £146 8m (2014 £134 4m”)
o Proforma” revenue up 4%, excluding the effect of Mobile bonus reduction®
o Proforma” revenue growth in Advanced Solutions of 10%
o 5% underlying® revenue growth in Mobile®, driven by 9% growth In the subscriber base
o Proforma’ gross profits up 4%

¢ Reported adjusted EBITDA increased 13% to £22 1m (2014 19 ém)
o Proforma™ adjusted EBITDA +10%

e Continued strong cash generation
o Operating cash conversion of 99% of adjusted EBITDA (2014 83)
o Netdebt of £18 7m {2014 £29 3m), matenally ahead of the Board's target of £20 Om
o Net debt leverage under 1 0 times adjusted EBITDA

e Proposed full year dividend increased 13% to 16 4p
o Reiterate intention to progress dividend payments towards 15% annual growth in the

medium term, anticipating growth of no less than 10% per annum
« Integration of the 2014 acquisitions now complete with the businesses rebranded Alternative and all
teams now located together in new faciliies
o Increased breadth of products and services facilitating product penetration opportunities
across the Group
o Company-wide systems and processes integrated in most business disciplines
Strong order book at period-end and healthy pipelne for year ahead

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Audited results for the year ended 30 September 2015 2014 Change
{Restated)

£'000 £000 %

Revenue” 146,816 134,413 9%
Adjusted operating profit* 19,194 17,593 9%
Adjusted EBITDA* ** 22,053 19,592 13%
Adjusted profit before taxation* 17,900 16,416 9%
Adjusted earnings per share*** - basic 28.4p 26 9p 6%
- diluted 27.8p 26 4p 5%

Divdend per share 16.4p 14 5p 13%
Operating profit 15,100 11,540 31%
Profit before tax 13,806 10,363 33%
Earnings per share - basic 23.8p 16 9p 41%

- diluted 23.3p 16 6p 40%
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* Operating profit before intangible assets amortisation excluding software, exceptional items and share
based payments

** Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

~+ Adjusted earnings per share Is based on adjusted profit after tax as set out in note 28

A Excludes revenue eamed directly from network providers based on sales volumes, that has been terminated in 2014,
following the amendment to commercial agreements with airhime partners

* 2014 revenue has been restated as discussed in note 1

~ Pro forma {like for like} numbers include a full 2014 financial year's performance for the businesses
acquired In January 2014

Mark Quartermaine, Chief Executive of Alternative Networks, commented

“2015 has been a good year overall, delivering robust revenue and profit growth whilst completing several
mayor integration and operational improvements projects The business is in a strong position going forward
The two acquisttions 1n 2014 and the transformational projects in 2015 have resuited in Alternative Networks
becoming an IT Services business with a unified operational structure, a fully invested sales force and a
market leading product portfolio, able to deliver end-to-end solutions to a larger customer base

“The improved profit performance in the second half of 2015, together with the high recurnng revenue levels
i the group, means that the Board approaches the coming year confident that the business can continue to
generate good levels of growth in the future The first weeks of the current financial year show signs that the
momentum carnied through the previous quarter is continuing and provides sound encouragement ”

Enquiries:

Alternative Networks 0870 190 7444
Mark Quartermaine, Chief Executive Officer
Gavin Griggs, Chief Financial Officer

Investec Bank PLC — Nominated Adviser and Joint Broker 020 7597 5970
Pairick Robb / Carlton Nelson / Andrew Pinder

finnCap Limited — Joint Broker 020 7220 0565
Stuart Andrews

Bell Pottinger 020 3772 2500
Elly Willamson / Anna Legge
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Introduction

The 2015 financial year has seen Alternative Networks make good progress in its stated objective to grow
the business further We have continued to strengthen our offerning, armed with an increasing array of market
leading products and services that can meet customers’ communications and data needs The investment
we have made, hath through the acquisition of complementary businesses and the upgrading of our
infrastructure, 1s delivering good results and leaves us well positioned for future growth

Results

Reported revenue for the year ended 30 September 2015 was £146 8m, up 9% on 2014 Cn a pro forma
basis, 1e including a full 2014 financial year's performance for the businesses acquired In January 2014,
revenues were up 3% year on year and up 4% after the effects of the contract changes in Mobile are
excluded Gross margins remained steady and adjusted EBITDA at £22 1m was up by 13% on a reported
basis and by 10% on a pro forma basis

Cash generation has remained strong across the Group with 99% of adjusted EBITDA converted to
cash Group net debt at 30 September 2015 had reduced to £18 7m (30 September 2014 £29 3m),
comfortably outperforming the £20 Om target we outhined in June and down from £41 3m at the time of the
2014 acquisitions

Dividend

The continued financial strength of the Group has enabled the Board to declare a final dividend of 109
pence per share, resulting 1n a total dvidend for the year of 16 4 pence per share, an increase of 13% This
15 1N ine with the Board’s intention to grow the dividend by at least 10% each year The objective remains to
progress towards 15% growth in the medium term The dividend will be paid on 25 January 2016 to
shareholders on the register as of 4 January 2016

Review of operations

The acquisitions made in 2014 have been integrated into the Advanced Solutrons division, which now
represents more than 50% of group revenue Advanced Solutions performed well in the financial year,
especially in the second half, following a shght lull in orders towards the end of the first half, and we closed
the year with a strong £5 2 milion order backlog The diviston alsc enjoyed some excellent new client wins,
and reinforced its particularly strong presence in the Higher Education sector, signing contracts with 14
universities and 33 schools during the year

Mobile Network Services traded in line with expectations and continued te grow its market share, with an
increased number of subscribers in a competitive market, representing a very creditable achievement Fixed
Votice was as expected shightly down on the previous year and in line with market trends, and the division
now represents less than 20% of group revenues Qur market leading Synapse portal has continued to be a
key differentiator, and we continue to drive further enhancements to its functionality, stability and reliability

The move to our new offices in Blackfriars Road, London, has completed successfully This, combined with
an upgrade of our entire IT nfrastructure and the full integration of the most recent acquisitions, means our
employees are better equipped to deliver our high qualty products and services to the market more
effectively and under a single brand, and has enabled our customers to dernve maximum benefit from them

We announced on 3 June 2015 that Edward Spurrier would be stepping down as CEQ and as a director of
the company and that Mark Quartermaine would assume the role of CEQ After a four month handover, Ed's
last day with Alternative Networks was 30 September 2015 We are enormously grateful to Ed for the
contnbution he has made to the growth of Alternative Networks from 1ts very earliest days, through to a hsting
on AIM ten years ago and on to what it has become today

Growth strategy
Led by the new executive management team, the Group 1s well positioned to continue the growth trajectory

seen to date The last year has been one of investment for that purpose, and we are well on our way to
becoming one of the UK’s leading providers of IT managed services to UK businesses This investment has
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been made to enable the Group to take maximum advantage of the expanded portfolio of services it has
steadily developed, both in-house and through acquisition

As we look to take advantage of the strong platform we have built, we will use our breadth of products and
services to establish ourselves the long term supplier of choice for a larger customer target base and drive
organic growth We continue to remain open to acquisition opportunities should they be clearly enhancing to
shareholder value and fit our product and capability set in addition, we intend to invest further in product
development so as to remain at the cutting edge of the market and maintain our competitive strengths The
growth of our pipeline, the increasing number of larger businesses taking more of our services and the
conversion rate of orders suggest that our strategy i1s working and will continue to deliver value We
therefore remain positive about our future prospects

James Murray
Executive Chairman
8 December 2015
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Chief Executive Officer’'s Review
Overview

2015 has been a good year, delivening solid growth in all key metrics whilst completing major integration and
operational improvement projects, and creating a strong platform to support future growth Most integration
related activities are now complete following the London office move and rationalisation, IT platform
enhancements and back office process integration This, in addition to significant investments, most notably
across our office portfolio, but also in our sales force and in product development, has resulted in a Group
that it 1s well placed to increase sales and deliver even greater customer satisfaction

In January 2014 the Group completed two acquisitions, which contrnibuted for part of the year in 2014 and for
the full year in 2015, and as such we refer to pro forma (or like for like) results in this report where we have
included a full year of 2014 results for the acquisitions as though we had bought them at the start of 2014
financial year

The major highlights of the year were as follows

« Continued gains in market share in key growth areas,
o Mobile subscribers increased 9% to 99,413 (2014 91,391)
o Advanced Solutiens pro forma revenues and orders up 10% and 3% respectively

Major product development with the release of new proposittons as well as enhanced versions of
existing products,

£1 0m investment in increasing ongoing account management resource to drive product penetration
across the existing customer base,

Completion of the integration of 2014 acquisitions with the businesses rebranded Alternative and all
teams now located together in new facihties, and

Shift of all legacy on-premise IT infrastructure and hosted services into modern managed secure
datacentres

The new premises and IT infrastructure provide the Group with a sound platform for future growth The
Group 1s better positioned to expand both its managed service product portfolio and its selling capability to
deliver the porifolio to new and existing customers more effectively

Trading and performance overview

In 2015 the Group has continued to build on a successful 2014, with momentum seen 1In 2014 continuing into
2018, and has resulted in increases in reported revenues, gross profit and adjusted EBITDA compared with
the prior penod and on a pro forma basis Group reported revenues at £146 8m were 9% ahead of 2014,
with pro forma revenues up 3% (2014 £134 4m), and up 4% when the reduction 1n Mobile bonus revenue
impact 1s excluded

Cash generation was once agamn strong, with operating cash conversion of 99% of adjusted EBITDA As a
result, net debt has fallen to £18 7m, beating the Group's £20 Om year-end target and bringing it comfortably
below one times adjusted EBITDA  This has allowed the Board to propose a final dividend of 10 9 pence
per share which 1s 14% up on 2014

The Advanced Solutions business was 10% ahead of the prior year on a pro forma basis Total orders
signed in the year were 3% higher than the prior year on a pro forma basis, resulting in a total backlog of
£52m at the end of the year for delivery in the coming financial year New orders have been generated
across the portfolio, with some notable areas of success particularly in Higher Education, where the Group
has signed contracts with 14 universities and 33 schools and colleges dunng the year

Hosted Managed Services and On Demand Services, formerly parts of ControlCircle and Intercept IT, are
reported In Advanced Solutions and are now fully integrated into the Group with all teams located In a new,
single London office and the businesses rebranded as Alternative Trading performance has been solid, with
minimal client attrition  As previously reported at our intenim results, performance n the year was moderately
impacted by two major customers putting new orders on hold pending internal strategic reviews, resulting in
lower non-recurnng revenues Of these, one customer has returned to its pre-review order profile Now that
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the acquisitions are fully integrated we are encouraged to see improving order trends overall, which we
expect to continue into the new financial year

The Mobile business has once again delivered a strong performance in the period, gaining market share with
a 9% increase In the subscriber base year on year, and a further 1,300 signed that will connect by the end of
the first quarter of 2016 Underlying revenues (which exclude the effect of revised commercial arrangements
with suppliers) grew 5% to £39 7m, representing 28% of the Group's overall revenue

Fixed Voice revenues were 9% below the prior year, in ine with expectations Gross profit was more
resilrent at 6% behind the prior year due to the positive impact of new commercial agreements stgned in the
period Whilst we continue to manage the product set for profitability, the key focus remains the migration of
the fixed ine base to SIP channels which have grown almost 50% year on year Overall the Fixed Voice
business now represents 19% of the Group’s revenue, down from 23% in 2014

Strateqy

The Group's strategy remains to become the leading IT managed services provider for UK businesses via
both organic and acquisitive growth The Group operates In the UK Telecoms and Information Technology
(IT) market as an IT Managed Services company covering the full spectrum of services and products from
device to the datacentre

The financial performance of the Group, Including revenues, profits, cash flows and net debt 1s set out in the
Financial Review and a discussion of the KPIs of the Group are included in the Trading Review, both within
the Chief Financial Officer's Review

Platform for growth

2015 has been a significant year of organisational and operational change Major changes revolve largely
around the Group's office space portfolio, product development and IT infrastructure The latter has focussed
on migrating our infrastructure and applications to our datacentre facilities and therefore improving resilience

These combined investments will not only improve our service offerings to customers, but will also increase
productivity and collaboration amongst our people and allow easier integration of future acquisitions

The Board 1s committed to building a broader and stronger platform for growth We have set out our vision to
be the leading IT managed services provider of choice to UK businesses We have invested a total of £0 8m
non-recurring capital expenditure on developing the new Infrastructure required to provide the services which
customers need to bridge private and public cloud services, in addition to routine recurring capital
investments The technical strategy I1s focussed on three elements

o On demand services — to be accessed through the portai and consumed per user per month {e g
Email or Unified Communications (“UC")) or per unit of compute (& g storage),

Infrastructure services - in mobile, WAN, voice and hosting, and

Significantly enhanced Synapse customer portal to include IT services and extend to public cloud
services

The Group infrastructure and hosting services are critical to the delivery of this strategy and in the second
half of 2015 we have launched our own UC cloud platform as well as a significantly enhanced “Desktop as a
Service”

Strategically, we are positioning ourselves to continue to support our customers to consume business critical
applications via a variety of communicatton methods, and this will support our growth aspirations going
forward

Organic growth

The Group continues to bulld successfully on the following four key areas of focus to deliver continued
organic growth

o} Winning larger customers in our target markets,

o Using improved customer service and Synapse, combined with the acquired portals, to dnive improved
customer retention across the wider product set,
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o Improved product penetration across our customer base, and
o Product development and innovation to increase value to our customer base

In 2015 the average spend per clent was up 12% on the pnor year demonstrating the successful
implementation of the strategy At the period end, average monthly spend of our 'large customers’ (1 e, those
with a monthly spend in excess of £1,000) increased 10% year on year, reflecting a significant increase in
the size of new customers to the Group

The Group's ability to win large contracts with new customers has been proven once again in 2015 including
sizeable deals with Homeserve and the London Internet Exchange to provide multiple services

Product penetration statistics continue to show a broadening uptake of services from across our customer
base, with increases in sales per customer showing that our customer service levels continue to improve

Product penetration across the customer base remains strong, with 46% of customers taking more than one
product (2014 46%) and the proportion taking 4 or more products increasing to 17% (2014 16%) Thisisin
line with the Group’s stated strategy of growing the average size of the customers, via enterprise sales and
driving product penetration in our existing base

Product development

We have always aligned our technical strategy with our customers’ needs and have now successfully
transitioned the Group into IT managed services We continually look at new product offenings to further
support customers and align their IT with the needs of the end user, and to deliver bespoke IT solutions for
our customers from the device to the datacentre As a result we are well positioned to take increasing
amounts of market share with new services, most importantly PaaS (Platform as a Service) and DaaS
(Desktop as a Service) in which our products are innovative and market leading and further similar offenngs

wili be launched in 2016

Year to September 2015

2016 plans

Advanced Solutions

The Group has continued to dnve relationships and capabilities
with core UC vendors with a focus on the higher value
application services {prmanly contact centre) within the
supplier eco-system, whilst also expanding our Skype for
business footprint within the Online Cloud platform

In the latter part of the year we launched our own UC cloud
platform APaa$ (Alternative Platform as a Service) utiising the
capabilities of recent acquisitions to deliver an Enterprise
grade, per user per month, voice platform to Group customers
The APaa$ offering 1s bullt on the principle of fast deployment
and easy to consume services whilst also providing customers
with a migration path with hybnd and full cloud options

Furthermore we have enhanced the technological capability
through which customer services are managed This is the first
in a number of planned developments that allows the Group to
provide a differentiated service offenng through a web based
platform that takes feeds from multiple momitonng sources and
correlates the data to understand how an IT environment 18
performing This allows Altemative to diagnose and resolve
customer 1ssues faster and understand the context and impact
an IT service interruption or performance 1ssue has on a
customer business

Moving nto 2016 further 'as a
Service' products will be launched,
and development of the cloud
platform will look toward public
cloud integration

The Group invested heavily in the
Online cloud platform in 2015 to
further enhance Iits capability,
scalability and secunty, providing a
foundation from which we build the
next generation of services in 2016
The cloud platform enjoyed 30%
growth 1n 2015, and combined with
the 2015 enhancements, provides a
robust feundation on which the
group will develop new services

Mobile Voice

Development in the mobile pertfolio has remaned focused on
cost control and device secunity expanding the portfolio to
deliver a standalone integrated set of products that allow
customers to control their mobile data costs and secure the
company data held on a device

In 2016 the portfolio will expand to
provide these services in a cloud
defivery model and integrate the
management capability Into
Synapse

Fixed Voice

With the 2025 date set for the withdrawal of traditional fixed
voice services the group has diversified its SIP offering and
focussed on the convergence of voice services with wide area
network services as iSDN replacement services

In 2016 the portfolio will expand to
incorparate  new  suppliers  with
unigque market capabilities
addressing specific customer usage
cases and increased development
of capabilities in synapse




Alternative Networks plc 9

Portal development

Central to this strategy s the use of Synapse, the Group's dynamic service interface, offering customers
significant service and flexibiity benefits  During 2015 the Group has continued developing Synapse as well
as continuing the process of converging the other, wider Group portal systems into it, providing an enhanced
interface, covering the Group's device to datacentre portfolio

As part of the wider transformation of our office and infrastructure estate, the Group portal systems have
been moved nto a fully virtualised environment, alongside our other internal IT application suite, in order to
ensure optimal performance for end users and greater service resilience

Significant work has also been performed on key internal systems to provide the basis for this convergence,
with unification of sales and CRM systems, and with ticketing to follow, this provides the foundations to
significantly expand the Group's portal functionality

Growth by acquisition

The Group's cash generative nature has facilitated the significant reduction in net debt since the 2014
acquisitions, this, combined with the strong balance sheet leaves us well placed to capitalise on further
opportunites and as such the Group continues to monttor the market proactively for further “nght-fit
acquisitions  Acquisttions are being targeted to complement the existing products and to further expand our
capabilities and product set in the Advanced Solutions area, with a focus on managed and hosted services

The main focus remains on strategic acquisitions that complement the existing product set and can be
seamlessly integrated, although the Group also considers bolt on acquisitions that would bring a customer
base where the Group can capitalise on its proven cross sell capability The Group will continue to be
opportunistic with regards to acquisitions We remain well placed to take advantage of any opportunities as
they arise, applying strict selection cntena

The Group's long standing and consistently strict criteria for acquisitions remains unchanged Targets must

o] be successful, growing, highly cash generative, and profitable,
o have customers that provide cross selling opportunities for the Group, and
o be earnings enhancing in the first full year of ownership

Outlook

The strategic acquisitions 1n 2014 and the transformational projects in 2015 have resulted in an IT Services
business with a unified operational structure, a fully invested sales force and a market leading product
portfolio, able to deliver end-to-end solutions to a larger and more receptive customer base

In 2016 we plan to continue to expand, upgrade and improve our product set, with a full pipeline of new
product development We are also planning further investment in the technology we use to service
customers, resulting in greater efficiency and improved service

Product penetration statistics continue to show a broadening uptake of services from across our customer
base, with increases In average sales per customer showing that our customer service levels continues to
exceed expectations

The improved profit performance In the second half of 2015, together with the high recurring revenue levels
in the Group, mean that the Board approaches 2016 confident that the business can continue to generate
encouraging levels of growth going forward The first weeks of 2016 show signs that the momentum carried
through from the fourth quarter 1s continuing and provides sound encouragement

Mark Quartermaine
Chief Executive Officer
8 December 2015
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Chief Financial Officer’s Review

Results & trading overview

In 2015 the Group has experienced continued growth in the Advanced Solutions and Mobile Vorce products
and services, and continued excellent cash performance The Advanced Soluttons and Mobile Voice
segments together now account for 81% of Group revenues (2014 77%), with a reduction 1n the contribution
from Fixed Voice services, which 1s in managed decline

Year ended 30 September 2015

Advanced Solutions =

Pro forma Mobile Voice Fixed Voice Group - Pro forma
Chang
Change Change Change e
£m % £m % £m % £m %
Revenue 779 10% 404 - 285 8% 1468 3%
Recumng 450 6% 404 - 285 8% 1139 -
Non-
recurnng 329 15% 329 15%
Gross profit 293 8% 190 6% 124 6% 607 4%
+250bp +110bp
Margin 37 7% -50bps 47 0% s 43 3% s 41 3% +50bps

in order to facifitate understanding of business performance, the Group sphts out its operating KPls, both financtal and non-financial info
three distinct revenue groups These are Advanced Solufrons, Mobile and Fixed Voice These enable the Group's performance to be
benchmarked against competitors and alfow the Board lo control more clearly the underying davers to the Group's business All recent
acquisitions are reportad in Advanced Solutions and have no inpact on Mobile or Fixed Voice For avoidance of doubt, the business
does not operate separate trading divisions but sells a converged product offenng, with teams of sales and service organised according
fo customer size

Total reported revenue increased 9% to £146 8m (2014 £134 4m), with pro forma revenue growth of 3%
The Advanced Soluttons business was significantly up at 24% on a reported basis and 10% on a pro forma
basis (£77 9m) Reported revenue in Mobile was flat year on year, but underlying revenue (revenue earned
directly from network providers based on sales volumes, which ceased during the prior year following the
redrafing of relevant commercials} grew at 5% (£2 0m) Revenue growth was partially offset by the
managed decline in the Fixed Voice business, which was down 9% (£2 8m)

Reported gross profit increased by 10% {£5 4m) to £60 7m, and 4% (£2 4m) on a pro forma basis Gross
margins are level year on year, reflecting the effect of good margin growth in Fixed Voice and Mobile Voice
netted off by some margin pressure across Advanced Solutions owing to pncing on some larger hardware
and maintenance deals Further analysis is detailed below by product

Adjusted EBITDA at £22 1m was up £2 5m (13%) on a reported basis and £2 Om (10%) ahead on a pro
forma basis As reported in our internm results, during the penod the Group has introduced a group-wide
sales commission scheme encouraging higher margin and longer term growth, which has had a one off
impact on adjusted EBITDA, increasing commission costs by £0 3m Nevertheless, the adjusted EBITDA
margin has increased to 15 0%, up from 14 5% in 2014, reflecting the continued drive on operational
efficiency and the benefits of integrating the Group, and is set to improve further with annualisation of the
improvements made in 2015
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Advanced Solutions

2015 2014 Change Change
Revenue Reported Reported Proforma Reported Proforma

£m £m £m
Recurring
Managed services 17.6 124 184 42% 4%
Online desktop 33 22 29 50% 12%
Maintenance 11.6 107 107 8% 8%
Connectivity 83 63 63 32% 32%
Billing 4.2 40 40 4% 4%
Subtotal 45.0 356 423 26% 6%
Non-Recurring
Hardware / software 263 211 225 24% 17%
Professional Services 6.6 59 61 12% 8%
Subtotal 329 270 286 22% 15%
Total 7.9 626 709 24% 10%
Gross Margins
Recurring 44% 45% 43% -100bps  +100bps
Hardware / software 21% 23% 23% -200bps  -200bps
Professional services 59% 59% 59% - -
Advanced Solutions 38% 39% 38% -100bps -

Advanced Solutions revenues increased by 24% to £77 9m on a reported basis and 10% on a pro forma
basis over the prior year Growth in the second half of the year was slightly slower than the first half, owing to
Q3 sales pressure ansing from wider economic events and strategic reviews resulting 1n new business
suspensions from two larger customers, as reported at the interim reporting stage

Growth has returned to healthy levels in Q4, producing a total sales order backlog of £5 2m, and signed
orders 3% higher than the prior year on a pro forma basis, giving high levels of confidence heading into
2016

New orders have been generated across all industry verticals and notable contract wins with larger
customers include a wide scale networking contract for the London Internet Exchange and wide scale WAN
and hosted voice migration for Homeserve

The margin In Advanced Solutions 1s broadly level with the prior year at 38% (2014 38%) as a result of
growth in higher margin services including professional services, netted against some pricing pressure for
larger deals involving legacy hardware and maintenance solutions
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Managed services

Managed services encompass the Group's offerings in all hosting, cloud and utiity services, including all
outsourcing services Growth in this area 1s a key focus with both existing and new customers High margins
in this area represent the added value nature of the services provided The 4% dechine in revenue on a pro
forma basis reflects a decrease in the lower margin pure hosting and colocation revenue as the Group
encourages clents to move towards higher margin, fully managed services

Online desktop

Online desktop represents the Group's cloud based Desktop as a Service (DaaS) remote access offering,
acquired as part of the 2014 acquisitions 12% pro forma revenue growth in this product has been generated
under the Group's ownership as we seek to take a key position in this growing market

Maintenance

Maintenance revenues have grown by 8% year on year owing to some large wins at the end of the prior year
and start of 2015 Margins are also consistent year on year as the group has been able to renew contracts at
historical pricing levels due to the service quality availlable to clients, and proactively churn any that involve
lower pricing

Connectivity

Connectivity revenues increased 32% to £8 3m in 2015 This growth was generated from data connectivity
sales to both existing and new customers Sales growth has also ansen from a number of key wins,
including the UK-wide contract with Menzies Distribution signed in 2014

Hardware & software

Hardware and Software revenues comprise all individual non-recurrning direct sales acress the Group, and
increased 24% to £26 3m (2014 £21 1m) on a reported basis and 17% on a pro forma basis Gross margins
have reduced across the Group due to a number of large deals where competitive pricing has been offered
in order to secure further growth opportunities in ligher margin products and services with recurnng revenue

Professional services

Professional services revenue, compnsing a mix of IT solution design and installation of data hardware,
increased 12% from £5 9m to £6 6m on a reported basis and 8% on a pro forma basis as a result of the high
level of hardware orders and also a number of more complex projects with higher levels of associated
installation requirements Margins have stabilised during the year following the integration of the acquisitions
and continue to reflect the efficiency wath which the Group 1s able to apply the workforce to new and existing
projects

Billing services

Billing Services revenues were up 4% to £4 2m (2014 £4 Om) This i1s as a result of further growth in sales to
third party customers and revenue from providing a hosted managed billing service Gross margins were In
line with the pror year at 53%, as the Group maintained its high client retention level and delivered more
consultancy services to clhients
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Telephony Services - Mobile

2015 2014 Change
£Em (Restated)
Revenue * 40.4 40 4 -
Mobile bonus revenue 0.7 28
Underlying revenue 39.7 KXY A 5%
Gross profit* 19.0 18 0 6%
Gross margin % 47 0% 44 5% 250bps
Subscnbers 99,413 91,391 9%
Recurring revenue 93% 89%
Mobile KPIs
Monthly ARPU (£) 34 36 6%
Monthly ADPU (Mb) 170 99 72%
Network churn 16% 14%
Customer churn by value 14% 11%
% Subscnbers in-contract 78% 73%
Monthly average contract length 26m 24m

#2014 revenue and gross profit has been restated following a reclassification of mobile customer credits and other costs,
as discussed n note 1

Headline mobile revenues were flat year on year at £40 4m, whilst underlying revenues grew 5% year on
year in the period (excluding the effect of bonus reductions) as the Group continues to take significant
market share Margins have once again risen, from 45% in 2014 to 47% in 2015, primarily as a result of the
2014 signed commercial agreements

There was continued high growth In the contract base with a 9% increase In subscribers to 99,413 at the end
of 2015 Whilst this 1s the result of significant new connections, demonstrating a continued ability to win in a
flat market, shightly higher churn has been seen in the second half of the year as market pressure has led to
the loss of certain customers where the Group was not willing to support lower margins

Mobile gross margins have increased to 47%, from 45%, mostly as a result of annualisation of the benefits of
the new commercial arrangements signed in 2014, but also other positive factors such as the value added
from the Synapse service platform

Mobile KPIs

The Group uses three principal KPIs to measure the performance of Mobile Voice, being “ARPU”, “ADPU”
and churn

= "ARPU" represents the average spend in lne rental, voice and data usage charges per live
connection per month in the Group's contracted base of subscnbers ARPU has reduced by circa £2
(6%) to £34 n the year, similar to the 2014 dechne (2014 £2) Underpinning this trend 1s the
reduction in line rental charges associated with bundled packages and the general trend in reduction
In voice usage, partally offset by increased data usage (see below) Declnes in voice ARPU total
approximately £2 50 (including rental charges) as a result of regulatory changes Data usage ARPUs
continue to rise, by 21% in 2015, which i1s lower than the 72% nse in ADPU due to a change in the
mix between European and higher priced ‘rest of world' roaming Growth in data ARPU has been
dampened somewhat both by general market pressures on pricing, where increased bundle
allowances have been seen and also a slight decrease in wider global travel, where we have seen a
100bps drop tn ‘rest of world’ reaming as a proportion of our total customer base
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s “ADPU" represents the average data usage per live connection per month in the Group's contracted base
of subscribers The average ADPU for the penod has increased by 72% to 170Mb demonstrating the
rapid growth In data usage The growth in data usage can be attnbuted to a number of factors including
the nse of the smartphone (71% of the subscnber base, up from 69% In September 2014) and the
ongoing move from 3G to 4G networks The growth seen, combined with the Group’s high margin
customer hase, gives a strong platform to grow further in 2016

o Churn by value, which iflustrates the retention value of all contracted customers to the Group, has rnisen
shightly in 2015 from 11% to 14%, mostly due to the loss of certain customers in the second half where
retention would have led to decreased margins that the Group was not prepared to accept Even at 14%
the Group I1s setting a market leading benchmark, where the broader industry sees churn levels of 20% to
25% and demonstrates the value the Group provides to customers Network churn was 16% which Is
again up slightly on 2014 (14%), an excellent performance in a very competitive marketplace where 1t 1s
easy to switch between networks The generally high retention 1s a result of the overall client expenence
covering the service offenng and the benefits of Synapse, and as we respond to general market changes
with sophisticated tariffs we expect this 1o improve in 2016

Telephony Services - Fixed Voice

2015 2014 Change

£m £m

{Restated)
Revenue 28.5 313 9%
Gross profit® 12 4 132 6%
Gross margin % 43% 42% +110bps
Outbound monthly ARPU (£) 1,385 1,421 -3%
Number of lines/channels (in¢c SIP) 68,388 72,027 -5%
SIP lines 10,924 7,424 47%
Average customer contract length (months) 30m 24m +6m

#2014 gross profit has been restated following a reclassification of other costs, as discussed m note 1

The market continues to operate on fwo-tiers with legacy fixed voice providers seeing network traffic in
decline by mid-single digit rates and resellers and service providers migrating their customers to |P services
at a faster rate resulting in annual revenue reductions in the order of low double digit (10-14%) On this basis
we consider our performance this year to be good given the market context The Group manages its Fixed
Voice Services in the context of the declining market place whilst improving market share and profitability,
and continues to retain its customer base via migration to SIP based telephony 1In the year the number of
SIP lines has increased by 47% from 7,424 to 10,924

Fixed Votce revenues declined 9% in 2015 to £28 5m due to a combination of customer churn and reduction
in call volume tc mobiles, regulatory price reductions and the continuing move to email and mobile However
the Group has again succeeded Iin the proactive management of this base with further commercial gains and
active retention, particularly in the Inbound services base where year on year gross profits have nsen 21%

The gross margin on this product set has continued to grow in 2015, from 42% to 43%, but with the revenue
decline, total gross profit has reduced 6% year on year The growth In gross margin 1s as a result of
improved commercial arrangements from key suppliers

Outbound services

e Outbound revenues decreased by 11% to £21 3m The underlying performance was I1n line with
industry trends as the reduction in call spends to mobiles, due to regulatory price reductions, and a
move to email, mobile and IP based telephony, continues to cannibahlse traditional office based
telephony revenues
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« Outbound ARPU has reduced by 3% to £1,385 in 2015 as a result of a general reduction in spend
resulting from the shift to mobile and data communications, tempered by an increase ansing from the
signing of new, larger, customers and churn of smaller customers Average contract penods are
now 6 months longer than the prior year increasing the viability of future revenues

¢ The number of lines In the estate declined by 5% to 68,388, with some of the churn being non or low
billing analogue lines that we have helped customers identify using Synapse The ongoing transition
to SIP has again progressed well with a 47% nse in SIP lines

Inbound services

e« Inbound services revenue, at £7 3m, was in line with 2014, as increases in NGN products
compensated for the reduction in customer traffic revenues As a consequence, gross profit was
21% upon 2014 at£3 7m

+ Gross margins are up significantly year on year, to 51%, due to the new commercial terms agreed
and increased sales of the higher margin NGN product
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Financial overview
Adjusted and statutory results

In these results we refer to adjusted and statutory results Adjusted results are prepared to provide a more
comparable indication of the group’s underlying business performance Adjusted results exclude adjusting
items as set out below and in note 28

Non-recurring items

As a result of the various restructuring activities the Group incurred non-recurnng charges of £2 4m This
compnsed £0 6m of redundancy charges, £0 8m of non-cash rent charges on unoccupied property during
the fit-out phase and £0 9m on restructunng and other charges

As reported at the interim stage, the Group has rationalised its property portfolio in 2015, reducing the
number of properties around London from five to two, involving the sale of one property for a gross receipt of
£3 8m giving rise to a profit on disposal of £2 4m, and the early exit of a leased property yielding a receipt of
£0 9m, both of which have been recorded as adjusting items

Finance costs

Finance costs were £1 3m (2014 £1 1m} dniven by the Group's existing debt facilities in place for the whole
year At September 2015 the margin appled to this faciity had fallen to 2 50% over LIBOR based on a
leverage position of the balance sheet of less than 1 0 Throughout 2016 the margin over LIBOR I1s expected
to be less than 2 50%

Taxation

The effective tax rate for the year was 17 0% (2014 22 0%) The effective tax rate in the current period 1s
lower than the prior period due to a further reduction in the standard rate of corporation tax for the year (from
22 0% to 20 5%) and 1s lower than the UK statutory rate due to the recognition of prior year R&D credits that
have been successfully received m the current year and profit ansing on the sale of a property for which
indexation allowances have been applied

Earnings per share

Basic adjusted earnings per share have increased by 6% from 26 9p to 28 4p Fully diluted adjusted
earnings per share have increased by 5% to 27 8p (2014 26 4p) Statutory (unadjusted) fully diluted
earnings per share have increased 40% from 16 6p to 23 3p

The weighted average number of shares in the year used for calculating the basic earnings per share has
increased by 502,918, as cutlined in note 11 The dilutive share number has increased by 52,057, due to the
Issuance of new long term retention share option plans (note 26) netted off by a reduction in shares relating
to the EBT
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Net debt & bank facilities

The Group continues to benefit from access to a £36 Om syndicated bank loan facility split equally between
two lenders {(a £43m facility reduced by £7 Om of term loan repayments), of which the average interest
margin payable throughout the 2015 financial year was below 2 5%

The year-end net debt balance was £18 7m, down from £29 3m at 30 September 2014 This 1s after £5 3m of
total capital expenditure and paying dividends of £7 2m The net debt level 1s down from a peak of £41 3m at
the time of the acquisiions, and well ahead of the target of £20 Om as set by the Board

Net debt performance 1s pnmarily driven by the strong operating cash conversion of the business (see below)
which has been greatly facilitated by the completion of acquisitton integration activites The Group closed the
2015 financial year with an impressive financial position, a key part of the platform for growth initiative

Cash flow

Working capital and cash management remains a key priority of the Group and once again cash flow has
been very strong Cash inflow from operations was £21 9m (2014 £16 2m), compared to adjusted EBITDA
of £22 1m (2014 £19 6m), representing a cash conversion of 89% (2014 83%) Alongside this the Group
debtor days have remained below 30 days

Year ended Year ended
30 Sept 2015 30 Sept 2014 Change
£m £m
Cash generated from operations 21.9 16 2 35%
Proceeds from sale of property — non recurnng 38 -
Taxation {1.3) {14)
Capital expenditure - underlymng {2.1) (21)
Capital expenditure - customer assets (0.5) -
Capital expenditure - non recurning infrastructure 27) -
Finance cost (net) (1.3} (11}
Free cash flow 178 117
Free cash flow before non-recurnng items 16.7 117 43%
Dividends {7.2) {6 6)
Acquisitions (net of cash acquired) - (51 5)
Net cash flow 10.6 (46 4)
Cpening (net debt)/cash {29.3) 17 2
Closing (net debt) {18.7) (29 3)

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure in the period was £5 3m compared to £2 1m in 2014, largely due to additional non-
recurring investments in the Group’s Infrastructure totalling £2 7m This was primarily comprised of office fit-
out and IT infrastructure, and was funded entirely by the sale of a property dunng the year for a total of
£3 8m There was a further £0 5m of spares and tooling equipment acquired as part of the signing of a large
hardware and maintenance deal in a new customer vertical

The remaining £2 1m of spend was In line with expectations and previous periods, and represented further
expenditure n respect of IT development, including additional investment in a consolidated customer portal
service, expanding on the existing Synapse functionality and investments in the existing CRM platform to
improve our service to customers and reduce operating costs
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In 2016 we expect capital expenditure to reduce back to routine underlying levels, with some additional
investment required across our product portfolio’'s, including software development to ensure our unique
proposition i1s consistent across all service ines

Dividend per share

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 10 9 pence per share {2014 9 6 pence per share) making a total
ordinary dividend of 16 4 pence per share for the full year (2014 14 5 pence per share)

The dividend will be paid on 29 January 2016 to shareholders on the register as of 4 January 2016

Principal risks and uncertainties

Managing the financial, operational and reputational nsks across our business and operations i1s cnitical to
our success Below we highlight the identified key areas of nsk that are monitored on an ongoing hasis The
Group's Risk Management Framework requires a regular review of the key nsks facing the Group

Contracts with suppliers

The Group resells the products of its suppliers and whilst many of the Group's products are supplier agnostic
and there exists a freedom to substitute various suppliers’ products, the Group acknowledges that it has
reflance n particular on the contracts with the mobile networks, 02 and Vodafone Both managed service
agreements run until March 2018

The Group mitigates this nsk by maintaining strong relationships with its suppliers at various levels of the
business, as well as paying close attention to ensuring the expectations of suppliers are met, and where
possible exceeded

Acquisition integration

The Group has set out that its strategy includes the acquisition of businesses where they are earnings
enhancing The Board acknowledges that there 1s a nsk of operational disturbance in the course of
integrating acquired businesses with existing operations The Group mitigates this nsk by careful planning,
rigorous due diigence and segregation of the target operations where possible Where there s full
integrabion of acquired businesses, the Group receives a report on the effectiveness of the integration and
variances from business plan All acquisitions to date have been fully integrated, with the exception of Aurora
{AKJ Limited) where an independent IT infrastructure 1s essential to its client offering

Technological change

The Group operates in a market of rapid and dynamic technology changes, and there 1s a nsk that the Group
falls to secure the necessary contracts to supply its customers with a new technology {disruptive) which
substitutes existing technology The Group mitigates this nsk by mamntaning close relationships with its
suppliers, and by employing a Product development team whose duties include research, review and
procurement of approprate new technology products for testing prior to release to our customers

Ability to continue to attract and retain key sales and customer management executives

Ability to continue to attract and retain key sales and client management executives - the Group 15 a direct
sales and marketing business and whilst the revenues of the Group are largely recurring on a monthly basts,
the Group depends on being able to recruit and retain staff of the right calibre in order to win and service key
contracts The Group has sought to mitigate this nisk by investing in a succession and training plan for career
development, and improving the employee benefits and remuneration over the last 3 years, including
commissions, and specifically share options and pension contributions The Board monitors the results of
exit interviews, recruitment statistics and staff attrition by department on a regular basis
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Regulatory nsk

The Group acknowledges that the pricing of products and services can be affected by regulatory bodies In
the UK and the EU In recent years, usage pncing from fixed to mobile destinations and EU Roaming mobile
voice and data retal pnces have been substantially altered The Board believes that where the pncing
regulations are directed at wholesale prices, the Group 1s more able to mitigate the nsk through its own
buying and pricing policies Where the regulator imposes price caps at the retail level, the Group 1s more
exposed to a reduction in margin where the operators do not substantially reduce their wholesale prices The
Group mitigates the nisks by careful and detailed research on the future regulations, and has been nvolved
in lobbying where applicable The Group will assess each nisk and build it into its forecasts of income as
soon as possible and will amend its pricing policies accordingly

IT environment and control risk

The Group Is tncreasingly dependent on IT systems for delivering its products and services and for retaining
customers, as well as for running the operations of the Group To date, the Group has used its own internal
expertise together with external consultants, where necessary, to build its own IT infrastructure and software
products, and I1s continuing to Invest each year in improving Iits systems and adding more resilience The
Board believes the Group mitigates the IT control nsks in a number of ways Firstly, it employs a broad range
of highly skilled IT personnel and ensures that there 1s a succession and retention plan associated with these
highly talented individuals Secondly, the Board directs its external auditors to focus on the IT environment in
its control testing at the annual audit, and also instructs additional internal audit where required
Recommendations from both sets of audits are tracked through by the Board Thirdly, the Group operates
best practise In its adherence with standards 1ssued by the International Organisation for Standardisation
and the British Standards Institute Currently, the Group has accreditation for - ISO 27001 Information
Secunty Management, 1ISO9001 Qualty Management, ISO 14001 Environmental Management, 15020000
Service Management and I1SO 22301 Business Contnuity Management in the majonty of its operating
divisions In order to retain these accreditations, the IT control environment 1s regularly reviewed by the
British Standards Institute

The Board s confident that there 1s a satisfactory framework for monitoring, assessing and reporting on
these nsks There I1s also a robust regular framework for reporting on predictive KPIs in the business

Gavin Griggs
Chief Financial Officer
8 December 2015

This Strategic Report is approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Gavin Griggs
Chief Financial Officer
8 December 2015
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Directors and advisers

James Murray - Executive Charrman

James Murray co-founded Alternative Networks in 1994 following the deregulation of the British telecoms
industry and having worked in both technical and sales roles for a number of London telecoms businesses
As managing director, CEQ and now Executive Chairman, James has overseen the growth of the business
from start-up, to becoming one of the leading independent business technology service providers m the UK,
sted on AlM and employing over 600 people nationwide James 1s a previous winner of Ernst and Young's
*¥Young Entrepreneur of the Year” Award

Mark Quartermaine — Chief Executive Officer

Mark has more than 30 years' experience in the ICT industry in a vanety of executive, sales and marketing
roles He joined IBM in 1984 and spent 16 years in varnious roles, including runming the point of sale business
for Europe and latterly in the US as the Worldwide Marketing Director for the Retail Division  Since leaving
IBM in 2001 Mark has served as COO on the board of NSB Retail and has held various roles at BT Global
Services, including MD of Public Sector as well as the UK President He was recently CEQ at Azzurn
Communications and a non-executive director at Prologic pic, which was successfully sold in 2012 Before
joining Alternative, Mark was Vice President of UK & Ireland for Juniper Networks and sat on Alternative
Networks' non-executive board until January 2014

Mark was appointed Chief Executive Officer on 1 October 2015

Gavin Griggs — Chief Financial Officer

Gavin Gnggs was appointed to the Board in Apnl 2013 He jomned Alternative from Logica plc, where he was
Group Financial Controller Prior to that, Gavin held finance director roles at Sodexo and PepsiCo, and was
Head of Group Finance, Planning and Analysis at SABMiller In addition to heading up the finance function,
Gawvin's responsibilittes also include the M&A and legal functions within the Group He 1s a Chartered
Management Accountant and has Bachelors and Masters Degrees in Chemical Engineering

Bernard Cragg — Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent non-executive Director

Bernard Cragg has 30 years' commercial and City experience A qualified chartered accountant, he was the
Finance Director and CFO of Carlton Communications plc from 1987 untl 2001 He joined the board of
Arcadia 1n 1999 and became chairman of its audit committee, and Senior Independent Director until its
eventual sale in 2002 He was a non-executive director of Bank of Ireland UK Financial Services Limited
{including Bristol & West Building Society) from 2002 untif 2007 In 2003 he became Chairman of business
information company, Datamanitor plc where he served until its eventual sale in 2007

He 1s the senior independent director and chairman of the audit committee of Progressive Media plc and held
the same position with Workspace Group plc until stepping down in 2014 Bernard 15 a non-executive
director of Astro All Asia Networks Limited, Astro Malaysia Holdings Berhad, Astro Overseas Limited and
Framestore and 1s Chairman of US based media company, Psyop LLC
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Ben Mingay - non-executive Director

Ben Mingay was appointed to the Board in 2011 An expenienced corporate financier, he 1s a Senior Partner
and co-founder of Smith Square Partners LLP, an independent corporate advisory business He was
previously a Managing Director at Credit Suisse First Boston and a Partner of Hawkpoint Partners Ben s
also a non-executive Director of HomeServe pic

Henrietta Marsh - non-executive Director

Henrietta Marsh joined the Board as a non-executive Director on 6 June 2014 She has sigmificant public
company experience, having served as a non-executive director (and chainng the Remuneration Committee)
at Dods (Group) PLC from Apnl 2012 to November 2014, been an independent non-executive director at
Acal plc since May 2013 and channg the Remuneration Committee since October 2014, and since January
2014 been a non-executive Director of Electric World plc where she 1s appointed by Living Bridge Equity
Partners She s also a Director of Henrietta Marsh Consulting Limited Previously, Hennetta was a director
of 31 plc where she worked as a fund manager and In private equity for 14 years She was also a fund
manager at Living Bridge Equity Partners responsible for all AIM investments Hennetta was the founder
charman of the AIM VCT Managers Group and 1s a member of the London Stock Exchange’s AIM Advisory

Group
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and audited financial statements of Alternative Networks plc and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30 September 2015

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group continues to be provision of IT managed services and independent
business-to-business communications

As a service provider, the Group supplies a range of services Including managed network services, managed
hosting, mobile phone and data services, internet and broadband services, non-geographic number services
and a variety of core information technology services The Group also supplies, nstalls and maintans
business telephone systems and assoctated integrated communications applications In terms of billing
services, the Group provides software and consultancy specialising in the telecommunications industry

The principal actvity of the Company Is business communications focused on service provision The
Company registration number 1s 02888250

Dwidends

The Company paid a 2014 intenm dividend of 5 5 pence (2014 4 9 pence) per 0 125p ordinary share, with a
total payment value of £2,662,000 (2014 £2,370,000) This was paid on 15 July 2015 to shareholders on
the register on 19 June 2015

The Directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2015 of
10 9 pence (2014 96 pence) per 0 125p ordinary share which will absorb an estimated £5,280,000 (2014
£4,644,000) of shareholders' funds It will be paid on 29 January 2016 to shareholders who are on the
register of members at 4 January 2016

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing these financial statements are
given below

J Murray

E Spurrier (resigned as a Director 30 September 2013)
G Gnggs

M Quartermaine

B Cragg

B Mingay

H Marsh

Edward Spurrier stepped down as Chief Executive Officer on 30 September 2015 and was replaced by Mark
Quartermaine on 1 October 2015 Mark was previously the Chief Operating Officer of the Group, a role that
has not been replaced since this change

The Company purchased and maintained throughout the financial year Directors’ and Officers’ lhability
insurance In respect of itself and its Directors

Share schemes

The Directors believe that a key element in attracting, motivating and retaining employees of the highest
calibre 1s employee tnvolvement in the performance of the Group through participation in employee share
schemes By doing so, the Directors believe that employees’ interests will be more closely aligned with those
of the shareholders The schemes are described in the Remuneration Report
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 1 December 2015 significant shareholders {those with over 3% shareholding) are as follows

Shareholder Holdings Percentage of 1ssued
share capital

Chns Witson 4,122,360 83%

Hargreave Hale 3,995,409 8 0%

Octopus Investments 3,961,789 7 8%

Edward Spurrier 3,076,065 62%

Blackrock Investment 2,822 230 57%

Investec Wealth & Investment 2,771,941 56%

James Sewell 1,865,899 38%

Herald Investment Management 1,806,520 36%

Director's shareholdings are shown in the remuneration report Edward Spurmer resigned as a Director on 30
September 2015

Corporate social responsibility (“CSR") statement

The Group 1s committed to operating in a socally and environmentally responsible manner and structures its
policies, initiatives and practices accordingly, as the business evolves

Employees

The Directors believe that the Group's employees are a source of competitive advantage and recognise that
continued and sustained improvement in the performance of the Group depends on iis ability to attract,
develop and retain employees of the highest calibre

The Group 1s committed fo the principle of equality of opportunity in employment and seeks to ensure that no
employee or applicant i1s treated less favourably on the grounds of age, disability, gender, gender
reassignment, pregnancy, maternity, race, sexual onentation, religion or belief, or because they are married
or In a cwvil partnership or 15 disadvantaged by conditions or requirements which cannot be objectively
Justfied

Entry into and progression within the Group are solely determined by the apphcation of job cntena, personal
attitude and competence

It 1s the Group’s policy to apply best practice in the employment of disabled people Full and far
consideration I1s given to every application for employment from people with disabilities whose aptitude and
skills can be utiised in the business and to therr training and career development This includes, wherever
possible, the retraining and retention of staff who become disabled dunng their employment

All employees are Informed of matters concerning ther interest as employees and the financial and
economic factors affecting the business The Company maintains established communication channels
management forums and brefings, conferences, weekly employee newsletter and the Company intranet as
well as team and individual meetings

The Group strives to create an enjoyable, challenging and progressive employee expenence where a
healthy work/life balance and general well-being 1s encouraged supported by a flexible reward and benefits
package

The Group places great importance upon training and development and has a well-established in-house
learning and development academy which supports career progression and development Over 57% of
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Group employees have been promoted into people management roles internally 44% of our employees
have worked for us for more than five years and 20% for ten years or more

Effective two-way communication, teamwork and collaboration are alsc cntical in creating an engaging,
positive and productive work environment The Group informs employees of the activities and performance
of the business through annual Group events, face to face briefings, weekly newsletters and Directors
operating an open-door policy Exit interview feedback and new starter surveys are reviewed to ensure any
potential concerns can be identified and managed at an early stage

Our environmental commitment

The Group appreciates the importance of sound environmental practice and the need to increase awareness
and change behaviour amongst employees The Group Is certified to 1ISO 14001 2004 Environmental
Management It ams to share responsibility for improving the Group’s practices with employees to
progressively reduce its environmental iImpact As part of our continued improvement programme we
completed the EU commissioned sustainability support programme, through their partner Carbon Smart

Recycling of unavoidable waste 1s considered a prionty and in 2015 we maintained a steady level of
recycling sustaining the improvements from last year The Group continues to recycle paper, cans, plastic,
cardboard, computer equipment, toner carindges, batteries and mobile phones We have continued to
control our energy consumption and have completed “switch it off” iniiatives in all locations

tn transforming our London office space in 2015 we now have almost half of the Group's employees located
In a BREEAM approved property BREEAM 1s the world's foremost environmental assessment method and
rating system for buildings and sets the standard for best practice tn sustainable building design, construction
and operation and has become one of the most comprehensive and widely recognised measures of a
building’s environmental performance

Although some travel to and between offices 1s nevitable, the Group I1s committed to reducing the
environmental impact of transportation The Group’s main offices have continued to develop and extend the
use of video-conferencing facilihes which reduces the need to wisit other sites In addition, role permitting,
we support home working

The Group encourages employees to use environmentally friendly transport options by restricting flights
between offices, using rail travel as an alternative to driving wherever practical and has introduced a Ride to
Work Scheme Scheduling of field engineers together with remote access capability also minimises time
spent on the road, and public transport and/ or overnight stays (hotels) are encouraged for engineers where
this 1s an alternative to excessive additional mileage

Where possible, we source environmentally frendly products and services, Including paper made from
sustanable resources and energy efficient appltances All new Company cars leased by the company
continue to have energy saving technologtes and carbon emissions below 120gm

Community involvement and charitable donations

The Group has chosen to forge links with local charities at each Company location which are coordinated by
the Group wide Chanty Committee

During the year, donations of £18,714 (2014 £13,347) were made to chanties The Group supports its
employees’ chartable endeavours through sponsorship and during the year employees participated i
fundraising activities raising additional donations of £22,470 (2014 £14,021), taking the total to £41,184
(2014 £17,368) The Group actively encourages employees to participate in chanty events by providing
time off and paying event registration fees
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The chosen chanties for 2015 were Restless Development, Pilgnms Hospice, When You Wish Upon a Star
and Macmillan Cancer Support

There were no pohtical donations made in the year (2014 mi)
Payment to creditors

The Group has a vanety of payment terms with its suppliers The Group agrees payment terms with Its
suppliers when it enters Into binding purchasing contracts for the supply of goods and services Its suppliers
are made aware of these terms The Group seeks to abide by these payment terms when it 1s satished that
the supplier has provided the goods or services in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions At 30
September 2015 the amount of trade payables shown 1n the balance sheet represents 57 3 days of average
purchases of the Group (2014 62 1 days) and 64 5 days for the Company (2014 60 3 days)

Financial nsk management
Financial nsk management is disclosed within note 23 of the financial statements
Share repurchase

The Group began its share buyback scheme in 2008 The scheme was entered into as the Group had funds
surplus to the operational requirements of its continuing activibes In arriving at the level of cash available to
be returned to shareholders, the Board took into account the levels of funding remaining in the Group to
enable it to meet its working capital requirements

The Directors will continue to monitor the leve! of cash required for the business and determine if further
repurchases remain in the shareholders’ best interests

Going concern

After considering the Group's financial projections, available borrowing faciiies, covenants on borrowing
facilities and other relevant financial matters, the Board 1s satisfied that on the date of approving the financial
statements, there 15 a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue n
operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis In preparing the financial statements The Group's trading performance has been discussed in
the Chief Executive’s and Chief Financial Officer’s statements

Statement of disclosure of information to Auditors
Each director of the Group, in office at the time of approval of this report, acknowledges that

e so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and

s He or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are
aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006
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independent Auditors

A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors of the Group wili be submitted {o the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting )

By order of the Board /
Gavin Griggs

Company Secretary and Chref Financial Offic
& December 2015

b/

’
/
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Corporate Governance Report

Introduction

The Board of Alternative Networks plc 1s committed to the highest standards of corporate governance not
only in the areas of accountability and nsk management but also as a positive contribution to the business
The Board considers that the Group, whilst trading on the Alternative Investment Market (‘'AIM’), has adopted
and complied with those requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2010 (“the Code”) as best
applicable to the Company given its current size

Board of Directors

The Board 1s responsible for the overall management of the Group and Is accountable to shareholders for
the creation and delivery of strong sustainable financial performance and long-term shareholder value

There 1s a clear dwvision of the roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
which are set out in writing and have been agreed by the Board

The Chairman 1s responsible for leading the Board and ensunng its effectiveness, setting the agenda for and
conducting Board meetings, ensuning that all Directors receive sufficient, accurate and relevant information
on financial business and corporate 1ssues and maintaining effective communication with shareholders

The Chief Executive Officer 1s responsible for the executive management and performance of the Group's
business, the development, recommendation and implementation of the Group's strategy and budget and
setting the overall policy and direction of all business operations

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its decisions The specific 1ssues include the
Group's overall strategy, the Group's acquisition and divestment policy, approval of key suppliers, approval
of major capital expenditure projects and significant financing matters and all corporate governance and
compliance matters It monitors the exposure to key business nsks, reviews the strategic direction of the
business, reviews annual budgets and progress towards achievement of those budgets and reviews capital
expenditure programmes The Board also considers employee issues and key appointments

Subject to the matters which it has reserved for itself, the Board has delegated authonty for the management
of the Group's business to the Chief Executive Officer who exercises this authorty through delegation to
members of the senior management team

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Chairman and the Board on all matters concerning
corporate governance He supports the Charman in ensunng the provision of accurate and relevant
information to the Board and for ensunng that there 15 a flow of information within the Board and its
Committees, and between senior management and non-executive Directors

The Group maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of Directors’ and officers’ labiites This
insurance cover does not provide cover in the event that the Director 1s proved to have acted fraudulently or
dishonestly

The Board, which 1s scheduled to meet monthly, met on eleven occastons in the current year, in addition to
four off-site strategy meetings

No of

meetings
In year M ES MQ GG BC HM BM
Board 11 11 11 i0 11 10 10 11
Strategy meetings 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Audit Committee 4 0 2 1 4 4 4 4
Remuneration Committee 4 4 3 1 3 4 4 4
Nomimnation Committee 1 1 - - 1 1 1
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Board balance and independence

The Board of Directors of the Group compnises an Executive Charrman, two Executive Drrectors and three
independent non-executive Directors Their biographical details on pages 20 to 21, demonstrate the range of
experience and judgement they bring to bear on Board matters The Board 1s satisfied that the Executive and
non-executive elements of the Board are well batanced, that no individual or Group Is or has been In a
position to dominate the Board's decision making and that there ts a substantial degree of Independence and

diversity

All of the non-executive Directors are considered by the Board to be independent of management  All non-
executive directors are free from any business or other relationship which could matenially interfere with the
exercise of ther judgement

Related party transactions are listed in note 27

Having considered the position of each non-executive Director, the Board 1s of the view that no current
interests or prior interests of the non-executive Directors will either influence or prejudice their objective and
independent yjudgement or their ability to act in the best interests of the Group

The Board Is satisfied that each of the non-executive Directors commits sufficient tme to the fulfilment of
their duties as a Director of the Group

The Board has established a framework for the induction of all newly appointed Directors which includes the
provision of corporate information and meetings with Directors and members of the senior executive team

Board committees

The Board has established a number of standing committees and has delegated certain responsibilities to
each of those committees The principal Board committees are the Remuneration, Audit and Nomination
Committees

Remuneration Committee

The membership and a summary of the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee can be found in
the Remuneration report on page 33

Audit Committee

Duning the year the membership of the Committee compnised Ben Mingay (Charman), Bernard Cragg and
Henrietta Marsh The members of the Committee are considered by the Board to be independent non-
executive Directors

Role of the Audit Committee

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for overseeing, on behalf of the Board, the financial
reporting and internai control of the Group

To this end, the Committee 1s responsible for

¢ Reviewing the form and content and monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial statements

+ Reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control (including financial, operation
and comphiance controls and risk management)

e Selecting and recommending to the Board the appointment, re-appointment or removal of the
external auditors

* Reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external auditors and the effectiveness of the
audit process

e Approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors
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¢ Approving and subsequently reviewing a policy of engagement on the appointment of auditors to
supply non-audit services

» Agreeing annually with the auditors the nature and scope of the audit process
Audit Committee meetings
The Committee met on four occasions during the financial year

Attendees at Committee meetings held included Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Group
Financial Controller and representatives of the internal and external auditors All of these attended at the
invitatton of the Chairman of the Committee

On two of the four occasions the Committee met with the Group's external auditors in the absence of
executive management

Main activities of the Audit Committee in the year to 30 September 2015
The prnincipal issues addressed by the Commitiee during the year were

e The external auditors’ year-end report for 2014, the review of the Group’s preliminary results and
annual report disclosures

o The external audit plan for the 2015 financial statements which included a review of the audit
objectives, scope, timetable, deliverables and audit fee

+ The Group's nsk management process
« The re-appointment of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP as external auditors

« The Group's internal audit activites and the effectiveness of internal controls, including the
consideration of the internal auditors’ findings and recommendations and the external auditors’
observations on internal financial controls ansing from their annual audit and intenm review

s The Group's internal processes and systems
+ Risks and Controls of the Group’s recent acquisitions

+ The appropriateness of the Group's whistle-blowing policy

Independence of external auditors

The Committee has adopted a policy on non-audit services designed to ensure that the provision of such
services by the external auditors does nat impair the audrtors’ objectivity and independence The policy is
based on the ICAEW Guidance for Audit Commitiees and defines both the type and value of services that
require prior authorisation of the Committee and the services that the external auditor 1s prohibited from
providing The Committee annually reviews all non-audit services provided by the external auditors to ensure
compliance with the policy The Committee remains satisfied with the objectivity and independence of the
Group's external auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been the Company's auditors since 2000, ten years of which has been
as auditors of a listed company (The Group listed in 2005) The Audit Committee manages the relationship
with the external auditors on behalf of the Board It considers the re-appointment of the external auditors
each year, as well as remuneration and other terms of engagement, and makes a recommendation to the
Board The last competitive audit review was in 2008, when PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were re-appointed
by the Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee There are no contractual obligations that
restrict the Audit Committee to recommend a particular firm for appointment as auditor
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Non-audit services provided by Auditors

The Group's external auditors may not provide any non-audit service that pose a significant threat to the
auditors’ objectivity or independence The Group’s auditors have confirmed that they are independent and do
50 on an annual basis During the year, with the approval of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Finance
team of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who are also the Group's auditors, provided services into certain non-
recurring project work to the Group The fee in respect of this work was £73,350 An analysis of the fees paid
to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP durnng 2015 can be found in note 5 to the financial statements

Whistle blowing

The Audit Committee has reviewed arrangements for whistle-blowing and has put a policy in place The
policy encourages a culture of openness and seeks to reassure employees that by reporting issues of
concern they will not suffer victimisation or detnment Employees are required to raise issues In the first
instance with therr ine manager or, If this I1s a problem, with the Human Resources Director or in exceptional
cases with the Chief Executive Officer or Charman of the Audit Committee The Group 15 committed,
whenever appropriate, to investigate fully any concern raised in a timely manner and where an investigation
confirms wrongdoing to take the necessary disciplinary or legal action The Group will, wherever possible
and without infringing confidentialty, keep the “whistieblower” informed of the outcome of enquines and
decisions taken with regard to the matter Guidance Is also given to raising matters externally

Nomination Committee

Durnng the year, the membership of the Committee compnised Bernard Cragg (Chairman), Henrietta Marsh
and Ben Mingay The members of the Committee are considered by the Board to be independent non-
executive Directors

During the year, the Committee met on one occasion and the Executive Chairman was invited to attend The
Committee meets as necessary to make recommendations to the Board on all new Board appointments and
to consider executive and Board succession planning The Committee has written terms of reference which
are avallable from the Company Secretary

Internal control

The Directors are responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and for maintaining and reviewing
its effectiveness The Group’s systems and controls are designed to safeguard the Group’s assets and to
ensure the reliability of information used within the business and for publication

Systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the nisk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss The key
features of the internal control systems, which operated throughout the pertod covered by the financial
statements and to the date of signing the financial statements, are descrbed below

The Board has put in place an organisation structure with clearly defined lines of responsibiity and
delegation of authorty to executive management Individuals are formally made aware of therr level of
authonty The Group appoints experienced and professional staff of the necessary calibre to fuifil therr
allotted responsibilibes

Executive managers are required to produce a business plan for approval by the Board prior to the beginning
of each financial year and detailled financial forecasts are formally produced during the year and reviewed by
the Board

Management accounts are produced each month and the financial results are measured against the
business plan to identify any significant vanations The Board discusses financial and operational
performance at its monthly meetings

The Group has a small internal audit function whose responsibilities include ensuring that internal controls
are comphed with The Group's internal controls framework 1s reinforced by subsidiaries having successful
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certification to 1SO27001 2013 Information Secunty Management, 1SO9001 2008 Qualty Management, 1SO
22301 2012 Business Continuity Management, ISO 20000 2011 IT Services Management, 15014001 2004
Environmental Management, and CHAS a nationally recognised Health & Safety accreditaton During the
year twenty two external SO audits were conducted by the Bnitish Standards Institute

The Group's procedure for approving and controlling capital expenditure and investment appraisal requires
approval of imitial capital expenditure in the budgets by the Board Approval of budgeted capital expenditure
projects 1s made at vanous levels of senior management including the Board where required

Throughout the year, the Group conducts an ongoing risk management evaluation process covering both
financial and non-financial nsks This involves senior management and executive Directors dentifying areas
of percewved nsk and the existing control mechanisms in place to monitor those rnsks Through a seres of
management workshops, attended by all executive Directors and senior executives, the Board has reached
consensus on those nsks facing the Group that are considered business cntical The Group has
implemented, and continues to implement, actions intended to manage and mitigate those key nsks During
2015, the Board will continue to review Its nsks and implement the necessary mitigating steps as those nsks
evolve and change

Financial reporting

A review of the performance and financial position of the Group 1s included in the Financial Review on pages
10 to 19 The Board uses this, together with the Chairman’s statement and the Directors’ report, to present a
balanced and clear assessment of the Group's position and prospects

Relations with shareholders

The Board 1s committed to and recognises the importance of effective cornmunication with shareholders
Ongeing communication 1s achieved mainly through the publication of the annual and intenm reports, trading
statements, the announcement of significant developments within the Group and the Annual General
Meeting

In addition to regular financtal reporting, significant matters relating to trading or the development of the
business are released to the market by way of Stock Exchange announcements

The Board 1s responsible for ensuring that dialogue with shareholders takes place and 1s based on a mutual
understanding of objectives A senes of meetings and presentations take place during the year with
nstitutional investors to review the Group’s performance and prospects These presentations are made
available via the Company's website

The Annual General Meeting provides shareholders with an opportunity to meet the Chairman and other
Directors, receive an update on the development of the business and to ask questions of the Board The
Annual Report and financial statements and the Notice of Annual General Meeting are sent to shareholders
at least 21 days prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting Shareholders have the opportunity to vote
on each substantally different 1ssue by the proposal of a separate resolution for each item of business The
results of the proxy votes received by the Group, including abstentions, are declared at the meeting,
following votes by shareholders on a show of hands

Bernard Cragg

Senior Independent Director and Deputy Chairman
8 December 2015
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Remuneration Report

Scope of the report

The Remuneration Report summanses the Remuneration Committee's activities dunng the year, the
outcomes for Directors’ remuneration and the Group's remuneration policy The report also describes how
the Group applies the principles of good corporate governance in relation to Directors’ remuneration This
report 1 not mandatory for companies listed on the AIM but has been voluntarly included as a matter of best
practice

THE REMUNERATION COMMITEE

The Remuneration Committee 1s appointed by the Board and comprises only non-executive Directors The
Committee meets regularly to determine, on behalf of the Board, the framework of executive remuneration

During the year, the membership of the Committee compnsed Hennietta Marsh (Chairman), Bernard Cragg,
Ben Mingay The members of the Committee are considered by the Board to be independent non-executive
Directors

The Committee’s terms of reference are reviewed regularly and approved by the Board These are avaiiable
for Inspection at the Group’s registered address The members of this Committee do not have any confiicts
from cross-directorships that relate to the business of the Committee The members do not have any day to
day involvement in the running of the Group

During the year the Committee met on four occasions

To assist the work of the Committee, the views of the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, Chuef Financial
Officer and Human Resources Director are also invited where appropnate These individuals did not however
participate in any decision related to their own remuneration

Where appropriate, the Committee seeks the advice of its remuneration consultants, Kepler Associates and
if significant changes to policy are proposed, larger shareholders are consulted During the year a new share
scheme, the Long Term Retention Plan was implemented which 1s descnbed in greater detail below Prior to
this, larger shareholders were consulted, and as a result of comments receved, a number of additonal
disclosures are being made 1n this report

During the year, the Committee also considered the terms relating to the resignation of the CEO and the
appointment of hus successor These are set out In greater detail below
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DIRECTOR REMUNERATION QUTCOMES
Directors’ remuneration
Salary and Bonus
fees paid or paid or Pension Other
receivable recewvable contributicns benefits 2015 total 2014 total
£ £ £ £ £ £
James Murray 299,800 - - 3,180 302,980 321,973
Edward Spurrier 410,008 - 50,000 4015 464,023 674,613
Gavin Griggs 238,000 120,929 22,800 2,763 384,492 401,981
Mark Quartermaine 285,000 48,903 27,500 3,105 364,508 180,859
Ben Mingay 37,723 - - - 37,723 34,675
Henrietta Marsh 34,000 - - - 34,000 10,723
Bernard Cragg 50,000 - - - 50,000 50,000
Totals 1,354,531 169,832 100,300 13,063 1,637,726 1,674,824

Edward Spurrier stepped down as Chief Executive Officer on 30 September 2015 In addition to the amounts
in the table an additional amount of £302,209 was paid fellowing the year ended 30 September 2015 in
respect of bonus for the year and other compensatory payments

Directors’ share options in Alternative Networks plc

Option Options at  Awarded Options Options Options at Option Exercise Performance
scheme 30/09/14 inyear Exercised Forfeited 30/09M15 pnce dates Cntena
Number Number Number Number Number £
Edward Spumer LTIP 139,366 - - 139,366 nil 07-Feb-16 EPS/OCF
Edward Spumer LTIP 91,721 - 91,721 - nil 31-Dec-16 EPS/OCF
Edward Spumer LTRP - 95,000 96,000 - nil 04-Feb-18 EBITDA/FCF/EPS
Mark Quartermaine LTP 43,536 - - 43,536 nl 11-Jun-17 EPS/QCF
Mark Quartermaine LTRP - 67,000 26,130 40,870 nil 04-Feb-18 EBITDA/FCF/EPS
Gawvn Gnggs LmpP 34,920 - - - 34,920 nl 17-Jun-16 EPS/OCF
Gawvn Gnggs Lme 52,412 - - 52,412 nil 31-Dec-16 EPS/OCF
Gawvn Gnggs LTIP 15,000 - - - 15,000 nil 11-Jun-17 EPS/OCF
Gaun Gnggs LTRP - 55,000 - 21,450 33,550 nil 04-Feb-18 EBITDA/FCF/EPS

Zero options vested duning the year and the aggregate amount of gains made by directors on the exercise of

share options was £nil (2014 £nil) There were nao directors (2014 none) who exercised share options

dunng the year

A descrniption of the LTIP and LTRP schemes 1s given on page 38 to 39 The LTIP options granted in 2013
have performance crtena based on adjusted EPS growth and adjusted operating cash flow over the 3 years
to 30 September 2015 Based on performance duning that period, 98% of the options will be exercisable on

the relevant date
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The LTRP options granted in 2015 can be exercised three years after the grant date if the option holder is
still an employee of the Group and performance criteria relating to adjusted EBITDA and adjusted free cash
flow have been met The adjusted EBITDA performance range for 2015 was £20 1m to £26 Om and the
adjusted free cash flow range (adjusted for strategic capital expenditure) was £12 Om to £18 4m Options
granted to executive directors are shown above, and an additional adjusted EPS underpin cnterna exists,
equal to 4% compound growth over 3 years from 2014’s base level of 26 9p If the EPS and employment
criteria are met, 59% of the options will vest based on 2015 performance, as shown In the table above

Non-executive Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the non-executive Directors 1s determined by the Board on the recommendation of the

Executive Chairman on an annual basis and takes into account market rates based on independent advice,
as required The non-executive Directors concerned do not participate in this process

Ben Mingay and Henrietta Marsh have fixed one year appointments until the Company AGM n January
2017 Bernard Cragg has a fixed three year appointment until the Company AGM in January 2019 The
appointments may be terminated by either party gving three months' notice at any time without
compensation

Henrietta Marsh receives a fee of £40,000 per annum with no pension, bonus, benefits or share options, Ben
Mingay recetves a fee of £45,000 per annum with no pension, bonus, benefits or share options and Bernard
Cragg receives a fee of £60,000 per annum with no pension, bonus, benefits or share options The non-
executive Directors do not participate in any incentive, pension or benefit scheme

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group I1s committed to the governing cbjective of maximising shareholder value over time Each year the
remuneration framework and the packages of the Directors are reviewed to ensure they continue to achieve
this objective If significant changes to the remuneration policy are proposed, larger shareholders will be
consulted and shareholders will be informed if significant changes are implemented

The Company operates in large competitive markets with areas of significant growth potential The Directors
believe that in this environment, the Group's employees are a key source of competitive advantage and they
recognise that continued and sustained improvement in the performance of the Group depends on its ability
to attract, develop and retain employees of the highest calibre

The key features of remuneration and the policy for each element of the packages for Executive Directors
are shown Iin the table
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Remuneration policy table
Element | Purpose and link to Policy and approach Opportunity 2015/16 | Change
of strategy of
remunera policy
tion in 201572
Base To pay a competitive Typically, reviewed no more than Basic salaries for No
Satary ievel of fixed annually executive directors
remuneration, taking Salary increases will normally be in | were reviewed with
Into account experience | |ine with pay review levels across effect from 1 October
and personal the whole company unless reviews | 2015 and now stand
contribution to the referencing companies of similar at £299,800 for
Company’s strategy size and complexity suggest James Murray,
Intended to atiractand | increases are required £330,000 for Mark
retain the talent Quartermaine and
required to execute the £245,000 for Gavin
strategy Gnggs Increases for
the CEOQ and CFO
reflected the changes
in roles following the
change of CEQO The
next review 1S
expected to be no
earlier than 1 October
2016
Annual To motivate executives | Performance metrics, targets and CEO/CFQO Ontarget | No
Bonus to maximise shortterm | weightings are reviewed and bonuses range from
performance and drive | agreed annually, with due regard to | 50% to 75% of base
specific Inihatives which | market conditions whilst ensuring salary with a
support long-term value | targets are sufficiently stretching maximum of 100%
creation The primary performance measure | Execubve Charrman
1s adjusted EBITDA None
Performance s assessed by
reference to Group financial
performance
Benefits Complements basic Company car allowance, private N/A No
salary in providing medical insurance, life insurance
market competitive and income protection
benefits to attract and
retain executives
Pension To aftract and retan Company contributes to a defined CEO/CFO Company | No
executives, by contribution pension scheme, or contribution of up to
providing an pays a cash allowance in lieu of 10% of basic salary
opportunity to build up | pension Executive Chairman
a provision for iIncome None
on retirement
Long Aligns executives’ Three year retention period CECI/CFO Upto No
Term interests with All awards vest based on adjusted | 110% of base salary
Retention | shareholders to EBITDA, adjusted cash flows over | Executive Charrman
Plan encourage long term None

value creation and to
motivate and retamn
executives

a one year period and adjusted
EPS qver the three year perod
Awards lapse If the executive
leaves as a 'bad leaver'
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Shareholding guidelines

The Company does not have formal shareholding guidetines for executive directors, given the substantial
holding of the Executive Chairman and his family Nevertheless, the executive directors have increased their
holdings during the year as set out below

Directors’ interests in the ordinary shares of Alternative Networks plc

2015 2014

Number of shares Number of shares

James Murray and family 14,344,488 15,016,823
Mark Quartermaine and family 2,803 -
Gawvn Gnggs and family 3,831 3,495
Bemard Cragg and family 35,000 35,000

The market value of the company’s ordinary shares at 30 September 2015 was 522p (2014 473p) and the
range of market prices during the year was 420p to 541p (2014 380p to 6Q0p)

Maximum dilution mits

The Company’s policy I1s that dilution to shareholders from the awards made since February 2013 under any
share scheme should not exceed 10% The dilution that arnses from such awards 1s shown in the chart
below, sphit between director and staff contnbutions
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Date of Grant Scheme Exercise Exercise 30 September 30 September
pnice (pence) penod 2015 2014

18 January 2006 EMI 1025 2008-2016 - 10,326

17 January 2007 EMI 1505 2009-2017 18,388 35,711

3 July 2008 EMI 1365 2011-2018 7,380 7,380

8 February 2013 LTIP 2013 nil 2016-2026 139,366 139,366

18 June 2013 LTIP 2013 nil 2016-2026 82,5639 82,539

12 June 2014 LTIP 2014 nil 2017-2027 366,469 458,190

4 February 2015 CSCOP 2015 490 2018-2025 18,510 -

4 February 2015 LTRP 2015 nil 2018-2025 468,990

26 March 2015 CSOP 2015 479 2018-2025 29,360

26 March 2015 LTRP 2015 nl 2018-2025 89,840 -

1,220,842 733,512

Employee Benefit Trust (‘EBT’)

An EBT was established n the year ended 30 September 2005, when three former directors were each
awarded interests in 638,400, 0 125p ordinary shares in the Company held by the EBT These shares were
held on trust subject to the trustees obligation to settle the loan from the Company used to acquire the
shares (equivalent to £277,000 each) During the year Edward Spurrier settled his loan due to the Company
and the associated 638,400 shares were transferred to hm

Share option plans

During the year the Company has set up a new HMRC-approved all employee Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
Employees may purchase new shares with the award of free matching shares under a two to one ratio up to
a maximum of £1,800 total contnbution per annum Matching Shares are subject to a three year holding
peniod and may be forfeited in certain circumstances during this time  The executive directors are eligible to
participate in the scheme

The Group's EMI scheme was adopted on 22 December 2004 Under the Group’s EMI Scheme, options
which are qualfying options under the Enterprise Management Incentive regime and also unapproved
options may be granted

An EMI scheme was established on 18 January 2006 (EMI 2006) As at 30 September 2015, options were
outstanding over mi ardinary shares (2014 10,326) under this scheme

A second EMI scheme was established on 17 January 2007 {EMI 2007} As at 30 September 2015, options
were outstanding over 18,388 ordinary shares (2014 35,711) under this scheme

A third EMI scheme was established on 3 July 2008 (EMI 2008) As at 30 September 2015, options were
outstanding over 7,380 ordinary shares {2014 7,380) under this scheme

As at 30 September 2015 options were outstanding over a total of 25,768 ordinary shares (2014 53,417)
under all three EMI schemes

Options under the EMI 2006 scheme are currently exercisable based on the conditions that the option holder
Is still an employee of the Group and that the Group had achieved certain performance criterna in the period 1
October 2005 to 30 September 2008 The exercise price 1s £1 025 per share which was the market value at
the date of the grant During the year ended 30 September 2015, there were 10,326 options exercised
(2014 9,505) and 5,318 options lapsed (2014 nil)

Options under the EMI 2007 scheme are currently exercisable based on the conditions that the option holder
1s still an employee of the Group and the Group has achieved certain performance criteria in the period 1
October 2006 to 30 September 2009 The exercise price is £1 505 per share which was the market value at
the date of the grant During the year ended 30 September 2015, there were 17,323 options exercised
(2014 15,972) and 500 options lapsed (2014 2,145)
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Options under the EMI 2008 scheme are currently exercisable based on the conditions that the option holder
s still an employee of the Group and certain performance criterta have been met in the penod 3 July 2008 to
2 July 2011 The exercise price 1s £1 355 per share which was the market value at the date of the grant
Dunng the year ended 30 September 2015, there were nil options exercised (2014 nil) and nil options
lapsed (2014 14,760)

A long term incentive plan (“LTIP") was established on 8 February 2013 Under the plan, nil cost options are
typically awarded annually and they can be exercised three years after the grant date if the option holder 1s
still an employee of the Group and certain performance criterta have been met  On 12 June 2014, the Group
issued further options as part of the long term incentive plan (LTIP 2014) There were 588,374 outstanding at
30 September 2015 (2014 680,095) Options granted to executive directors are shown above

On 4 February 2015 the Group granted a senes of 22,830 shares under a newly formed Company share
option plan (“CSOP 2015") followed by a further series of 29,560 options on 26 March 2015 The options can
be exercised three years after the grant date if the option holder is still an employee of the Group and certain
performance criteria have been met There were 47,870 CSOP 2015 options outstanding at 30 September
2015 (2014 nil) Options granted to executive directors are shown above

On 4 February 2015 the Group granted a series of 589,670 shares under its newly formed long term
retention plan (“LTRP 2015") followed on 26 March 2015 by a further senes of 90,440 options The options
can be exercised three years after the grant date if the option holder 1s still an employee of the Group and
certain performance critena have been met There were 558,830 LTRP 2015 options outstanding at 30
September 2015 (2014 nil)

Service agreements

Each of the Executive Directors has a Service Agreement with the Group These are roling agreements
which can be terminated by either party giving at least six months' notice in wnting at any time If the Group
terminates the contract by notice, other than full notice, the Service Agreements provide for the payment of
the fixed amount equal to the salary and other contractual benefits for the unexpired proportion of the
duration of the appointment or entitlernent to notice, as the case may be It is the Committee’s view that they
should not change the term of the existing Directors’ Service Agreements

Signed by and approved on behalf of the Board

Henrietta Marsh
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
8 December 2015
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual
report and the financial statements

The Dwectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law
the Directors have prepared the Group and Parent Company financial statements n accordance with
Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law
the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far
view of the state of affars of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that year
in prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

» select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Umon have been followed, subject to
any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Drireclors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the Company's website legislation in the
United Kipgdom goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from

Iegislat}oyﬁf'other Junsdictions

Griggs
pany Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
ecember 2015
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Alternative
Networks plc

Report on the group financial statements

Qur opinion
In qur cpirion

« Alternative Networks pic's group financial statements and company financial statements (the
“financial statements”) give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the company’s
affairs as at 30 September 2015 and of the group’s profit and the group'’s and the company's cash
flows for the year then ended,

«+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") as adopted by the European Union,

« the company financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2006, and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006

What we have audited

The financial statements comprise
¢ the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30 September 2015,
« the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,
« the consolidated and company statements of cash flows for the year then ended,
« the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended, and
e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements I1s
applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the company financial
statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective Judgements,
for example in respect of significant accounting estmates in making such estimates, they have made
assumptions and considered future events

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion
« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audu, or

 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audut
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

« the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion, certain disclosures of

directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from this
responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors
As explained more fuily in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibiities set out on page 40, the directors are

responsibie for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view

Our responsibiity 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)”) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in
gving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in
writing

What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with 1ISAs (UK & Ireland) An audit involves obtaining evidence about

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of

e whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the company's circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

» the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
+ the overall presentation of the financial statements

We pnmarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements against available
evidence, forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures n the financial statements
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Wae test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the axtent we consider
necessary to provide a reasonable basis tor us to draw conclustons We obtain audit evidence through
testing the etfectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both

in addition. we read ail the hnancial and non-financial mformation In the Annual Report to tdentify matenal
nconsistencias with the audited financial statements and to identity any information that 1s apparanily
matenally iIncorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course ol
performing the audit It we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

j M
Juhan Jenkins (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behall of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
B December 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 September 2015
Year ended Yearended
30 September 30 September
2015 2014 {Restated)
Note £'000 E£'000
Revenue 3 146,816 134,413
Cost of sales 4 {86,113) (79,101)
Gross profit 60,703 55,312
Operating costs 4 {45,603) (43,772}
Operating profit 5 15,100 11,540
Operating profit - analysed:
Adjusted operating profit 28 19,194 17,593
Share based payments 26 {1,309) (510)
Amortisation of intangible assets (excluding computer software} 12 {3,698) {3,496)
Income from property exit 28 3,299 -
Restructuring, acquisition and associated costs 28 {2,386) {2,047)
QOperating profit 15,100 11,540
Finance income 7 3 25
Finance costs 8 {1,297) {1,202)
Profit before taxation 13,806 10,363
Taxation 9 {2,339} (2,285)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 11,467 8,078
Earnings per ordinary share.
Basic 11 23 8p 16 9p
Diuted 11 23.3p 16 6p

The notes on pages 50 to 81 are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements

The Company has elected to take the exemptions under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to
present the Parent Company's statement of comprehensive income The Parent Company’s profit for the

financial year was £7,301,000 (2014 £8,331,000)
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 September 2015

Group Group Company Company
30 September 30September 30 September 30 September
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 73,166 76,745 3,251 3,436
Property, plant and equipment 13 4,917 2,319 2,877 563
Investments 14 - - 78,599 78,599
Deferred tax asset 15 559 1,446 - 337
Property deposits 280 154 - -
78,922 80,664 84,727 82,935
Current assets
Asset held for sale 16 - 1,401 - 1,401
inventones 17 1,293 327 - 2
Trade and other receivables 18 28,288 26,788 10,782 13,152
Cash and cash equivalents 19 2,362 3,793 467 720
31,943 32,309 11,249 15,275
Total assets 110,865 112,973 95,976 98,210
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Catled up share capital 20 62 62 62 62
Share premium 6,600 6,563 6,600 6,563
Capital redemption reserve 8 8 B8 8
Merger reserve 2,749 2,749 - -
Retained earnings 33,249 27,728 33,392 32,314
Total equity 42,668 37,110 40,062 38,947
Current habilities
Borrowings 22 6,598 5,111 6,598 5,111
Current tax habihities 2,211 1,146 1,371 679
Trade and other payables 21 41,201 37,079 33,206 25,503
50,010 43,336 41,175 31,293
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 22 14,500 27,970 14,500 27,970
Deferred tax habiltties 15 3,687 4,557 239 -
18,187 32,527 14,739 27,970
Total liabilities 68,197 75,863 55,914 59,263
Total equnty and hiabilities 110,865 112,973 95,976 98,210

The notes on pages 50 to 81 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
The Company registration number 1s 02888250

The financtal statements on pages 44 to 81 were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 December 2015
and were signed on its behalf by

Mark Quartermaine
Chief Executive Officer .
8 December 2015
U
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Capital
Called up Share redemption Merger Retained
share capltal premium reserve reserve eamings Total equity
a) b} c) d}
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £000 £000
Balance at 30 September 2013 62 6,534 8 2,749 25,783 35,136
Shares issued - 29 - - - 29
IFRS2 share based payments - - - - 419 419
Deferred tax on share options - - - - 12 12
Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income - - - - 8,078 8,078
Dividends paid - - - - (6,564) (6,564)
Balance at 30 September 2014 62 6,563 8 2,749 27,728 37,110
Shares 1ssued - 37 - - - 37
Reissue of shares by the trust - - - - 277 277
IFRS2 share based payments - - - - 1,078 1,078
Deferred tax on share options - - - - 4 4
Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income - - - - 11,467 11,467
Dividends paid - - - - {7,305} (7,305)
Balance at 30 September 2015 62 6,600 8 2,749 33,249 42,668
The notes on pages 50 to 81 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
a) The balance classified as share capital includes the proceeds ansing on issue of the Company's

equity share capital, compnsing 0 125p ordinary shares and the cancellation of shares purchased

during the year

b) Share premium represents the difference between the fair value consideration received and nominal
value of shares 1ssued

c) Capital redemption reserve arose from the purchase of own share capital

d) The merger reserve results from the previous acquisitions of Integrated Communications for

Business (UK) Limited, Aurora Kendrick James Limited, Scalable Communications plc and The
Telecom Centre Limited This represents the difference between the value of the shares acquired

(nominal value plus reiated share premium) and the nominal value of the shares 1ssued
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Alternative Networks plc
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Capital
Called up Share redemption Retained
share capital premium reserve eamings Total equity
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 30 September 2013 62 6,534 8 30,116 36,720
Share i1ssued - 29 - - 29
IFRS2 share based payments - - - 419 419
Deferred tax on share options - - - 12 12
Profit for the year and totat
comprehensive income - - - 8,331 8,331
Dividends paid - - - {6,564} (6,564)
Balance at 30 September 2014 62 6,563 8 32,314 38,947
Share 1ssued 37 37
IFRS2 share based payments - - - 1,078 1,078
Deferred tax on share options - - - 4 4
Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income - - - 7,301 7,301
Dividends pad - - - {7,305) {7,305)
Balance at 30 September 2015 62 6,600 8 33,392 40,062

The notes on pages 50 to 81 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements




48

Alternative Networks plc
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 September 2015
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2015 2014
Notes £'000 £'000
Cash flaows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 24 21,879 16,167
Income tax paid (1,247) (1,376)
Net cash generated from operating activities 20,632 14,791
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of propenrty, plant and equipment 13 (a,020) {846)
Purchase of intangible assets 12 (1,295) {1,230}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,800 -
Interest received 3 25
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (net of cash acquired) - (50,880)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,512) {52,931)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid {1,298) {1,070)
Dividends paid 10 (7,305) (6,564)
Proceeds from issue of share capital 37 29
Transaction costs in relation to loan facility - (724)
Proceeds from borrowings - 35,000
Repayments of borrowings {11,985) (2,668)
Net cash (used in)/received from financing activities {20,551) 24,003
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,431) {14,137)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 19 3,793 17,930
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19 2,362 3,793

The notes on pages 50 to 81 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 September 2015

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2015 2014
Notes £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 24 20,573 20,789
Income tax paid {773} {1,129)
Net cash generated from operating activities 19,800 19,660
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 {2,558) {378)
Purchase of intangible assets 12 (766) (1,081)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,800 -
Interest received 3 25
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings {net of cash acquired) - {51,773)
Net cash received from/{used in} investing activities 479 {53,207)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (1,295) (1,070}
Dividends paid 10 (7,305) {6,564)
Proceeds from issue of share capital 37 29
Transaction costs in relation to loan facility - {724)
Proceeds from borrowings - 35,000
Repayments of borrowings (11,969) {2,094)
Net cash {used in)/received from financing acbivities {20,532} 24,577
Decrease 1n cash and cash equivalents {253) {8,970)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 19 720 9,690
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19 a67 720

The notes on pages 50 to 81 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information

Alternative Networks plc 1s a company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered office I1s 5" Floor, 240 Blackfriars Road, London SE1
BNW The shares of the Company are listed on the Alternative Investment Market

2 Accounting policies

Statement of comphance and basis of preparation

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU
and IFRIC interpretations and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis Further detail 1s included within the
Report of the Directors

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounhing estimates It also requires management to exercise its judgement In the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or compiexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed below

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

The functional currency of the Company 1s Pounds Sterling (GBP) as that 1s the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates These financial statements are presented in
Pounds Sterling {GBP)

The Group offers discounts to Mobile customers which have previously been treated as adjustments to
cost of sales due to the nature of the incentive wnitten into contractual agreements In light of changes In
the contractual agreements these amounts are now treated as adjustments to revenue This change has
resuited in a reduction In revenue and a corresponding reduction in cost of sales in the current year of
£4 3m Separately, in order to bring the basis of reported margins in the Telephony Services segment in
Iine with the Advanced Solutions segment, certain costs have been reclassified from operating costs to
cost of sales, resulting in an increase In cost of sales in the current year of £1 4m

In order to aid the comparability of amounts included in these financial statements, adjustments to
revenue ang cost of sales of £3 4m and £1 5m have been applied to the comparative year for discounts
to customers and cost reclassification respectively Accordingly, operating costs have been reduced by
£1 5m There are no earnings per share or equity impacts arising from these adjustments in any peniod
presented in these financial statements

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year that
had a matenal impact on the Group

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted and not relevant to the Group’s operations

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
penods beginning after 1 October 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated
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financial statements None of these will matenally impact the consolidated financial statements of the
Group

IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IAS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’ (revised 2011)

IAS 28, 'Investments In Associates and Joint Ventures' (revised 2011)

Amendment to IAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments Presentation, on offsetting financiat assets and financial
habtlities’

Amendments to IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ and IFRS
12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

Amendment to IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements' and IFRS 12 and IAS 27 for investment
entities

Amendment to 1AS 39, ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and measurement’ and IFRS 9 'Financial
Instruments’

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to
have a matenat impact on the Group

Basis of consolidation

Subsidianies are all entites over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control 1s transferred to the Group They are de-consolhdated from the date that control ceases

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidianies by the Group
The cost of an acquisition i1s measured as the far value of the assets given, equity instruments 1ssued
and habilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange Costs directly attnbutable to the acquisitton
are recognised In the statement of comprehensive income as incurred Identifiable assets acquired and
llabilities and contingent liabilities assumed In a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill If the cost of acquisition s less than the farr value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference 1s recogrused directly in the income statement

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated Unrealised losses are also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator of the asset
transferred Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and can be reliably measured The following specific recognition cnteria must also be met before
revenue I1s recogmised

Revenue from calls, which excludes value added tax, is recognised in the income staterment at the time
the call 1Is made Calls made in the year, but not biled by year end are accrued within receivables as
accrued iIncome
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Revenue from line rentals 1s recognised in the month that the charge relates to, commencing with a full
month's charge in the month of connection Revenue and related costs from the sale of handsets are
recognised on the date of despatch

Connection commissions received from mobile network operators are recognised when the customer 1s
connected or on anniversary of connection to the mobile network after prowviding for expected future
clawbacks Mobile commissions in respect of average revenue per user are recogmsed at the end of the
relevant performance period

Revenue and related costs from the sale of accessories are recognised when despatched

Revenue ansing from the provision of internet and other services 1s recognised evenly over the periods
in which the service 1s provided to the customer

Hardware revenue and related expenditure 1s recognised upon despatch for the sale of equipment
Installation revenue and related expenditure 1s recogmised upon completion of work for systems
installations Maintenance income in respect of systems 1s recognised evenly over the period to which it
relates

Connection revenue received from customers 1s recognised when the customer is connected to the
network

Corporate support revenue (discretionary bonuses received from network providers in refation to a new
connection) 1s recognised 1n ine with the recognition of the associated hardware allowance / account
credit in cost of sales 1 e the revenue I1s recognised on the date of connection and 1s partially deferred in
proportion to the deferred element of hardware allowance / account credit

Revenue from customer management services 15 recognised in the same month as revenue for the
managed services (e g usage, line rental, connections) Where Alternative Networks carnes credit nisks,
gross fees received from customers are recognised tn revenue with fees passed to the network provider
being recogmised n expenses Where the network provider carnes credit nsks, only net management
fees are recogrised in revenue

Revenue from compensation for breach of contract 1s recognised when it 1s paid by the customer
Billing services income and related costs are recognised in the month of service
Revenue earned from consultancy I1s recognised upon the percentage of completion of the project

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foretgn currency are translated at exchange rates prevaling at the
transaction date Monetary assets and labiites are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the year-
end date Any gains or losses arnising on exchange are reflected in the statement of comprehensive
income

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment n
value Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the

asset to its working condition for its intended use

Depreciation, down to residual value, 1s calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the asset as follows,-
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Building element of long leaseholds 2% per annum
Leasehold improvements over the lease term
Plant and equipment 20% - 33% per annum
Motor vehicles 25% per annum

The useful economic lives and residual values attributable to each class of asset are reviewed and
adjusted if appropnate at each balance sheet date

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet
date and when events or changes In circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable
If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount,
the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amount

An item of property, plant and equipment 1s removed upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to anse from the continued use of the asset Any gain or loss ansing on de-recognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) 1s Included in the ncome statement in the year the item s derecognised

Land 15 not depreciated and 1s held at historical cost
Leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantally all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income
statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Intangible assets

Goodwill 1s accounted for by recognising identifiable assets (including previously unrecognised
intangible assets) and habilities (including contingent habilities and excluding future restructuring) of the
acquired business at far value Goodwill s initially measured at cost, being the excess of the far value
of payments made, assets transferred and future payments, over the Group's interest in the net fair vaiue
of the acquiree's identifiable assets, habilihes and contingent liabilities The results of the acquired
entities are included in the Group’s results from the date when control of the Company passes to the
Group Goodwill 1s valued at cost less accumulated impairment

Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment, annually, or more frequently If events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of goodwill allocated to a cash generating unit may be impaired
Impairment 1s determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates Where recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss 1s recognised

Purchased customer contracts are capitalised at cost and amortised on a straight iine basis over therr
estimated useful economic hfe, from the date of acquisition, as considered reasonable by the Directors

Software and software licences includes computer software that 1s not integral to a related item of
hardware These assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment in value
Amortisation 1s calculated on straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset

Customer contracts, relationships, technology, order backlog and trade names s the far value
determined by the net present value of the future cash flow benefits anticipated to anse from the
intangible assets less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
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Amortisation of intangibles 1s charged to the income statement on a straight ine basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets Goodwill I1s tested systematically for impairment at each
annual balance sheet date Other intangible assets are amortised from the date that they are available
for use The estimated useful lives are as follows

Customer contracts and relationships acquired on acquisitions 7-10 years

Technology 4 years

Trade name 3 years

Purchased customer contracts 3-5 years

Computer software 3-5 years

Order backlog (included within customer contracts and relationships) 1 year
Investments

All investments are inihally recognised at cost, betng the far value of the consideration given and
including acquisition charges associated with the investment Investments are tested for imparrment at
each reporting date or If events indicate that the carrying value has been diminished

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making allowance for any
obsolete or slow moving items Net realisable value 1s reviewed regularly to ensure accurate carrying
values Cost s determined on a first-in-first-out basis and includes transportation and handling costs

Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables which comprise ‘trade and other
receivables’ and 'cash and cash equivalents' in the balance sheet Financial assets are held at amortised
cost and management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition The
Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired For loans and receivables categores, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced and the
amount of the loss 1s recognised in the consolidated income statement

Trade and other receivables

Trade recewvables, which generally have 14-60 day terms, are intially recognised at far value and
subsequently held at amortised cost A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the recevables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency In payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivable 1s impaired The provision is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the original invoice amount tess bad debts wnitten-off The carrying amount of the
asset 1s reduced through the use of the provision and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement When a trade receivable i1s uncollectible, it 1s wntten off against the allowance account for
trade recevables Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are credited in the income
statement
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank, in hand and short term deposits
with a matunity of three months or less

Derecognmition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset or liability 1s generally derecognised when the contract that gives nise to it 1s settled,
sold, cancelled or expires

Trade payables

Trade payables are stated at therr nominal value, recognised intially at farr value and subsequently
valued at amortised cost

Share capital

Equity nstruments i1ssued by the Company are recorded at their nominal value Proceeds received, net
of direct 1ssue costs, 1s sphit between share capital and share premium

Segmental reporting

Operating segments require identification on the basis of internal reporting about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to allocate resources to the
segments and to assess their performance For further information see note 3 of the financral
statements

Current taxation

The current Income tax charge Is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date In the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regutation 1s subject to mnterpretation It establishes provisions where
appropnate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authonitres

Deferred taxation

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liabiity method, on temporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts In the consolidated financial
statements However, the deferred income tax 1s not accounted for, if it anses from imtial recognition of
an asset or liabilty 1n a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred income tax i1s determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset I1s realised or the deferred income tax hability 1s
settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax 1s provided on temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference s controlled by the Group
and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future
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Deferred income tax assets and liabiites are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable rnght to offset
current tax assets against current tax habilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and habilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Group operates a defined contnbution scheme and contributes to an independent stakeholder
pension Contributions are recognised as an expense in the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the scheme

Employee benefits

In accordance with IAS 19, the Group provides for accrued holiday benefit The cost s measured as the
additional amount that the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused holiday entitiement that has
accumulated at the balance sheet date

The Group contributes to employees defined contribution pension plans A defined contribution plan 1s a
pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions intc a separate entity The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contnbutions ence contributions have been paid The
contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attnbutable to the Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated by the Group before the normal
retrement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits

The Group recognises termination benefits when it 1s demonstrably committed to a termination when the
entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment of current employees without possibility of
withdrawal

Employee Benefit Trust

The assets and habilities of the Employee Benefit Trust ("EBT") have been included n the Group
financial statements Any assets held by the EBT cease to be recognised on the Group balance sheet
when the assets vest unconditionally in identfied beneficiares The costs of purchasing own shares held
by the EBT are shown as a deduction against equity

Share-based payment transactions

The Group’s management awards certain employees bonuses in the form of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans on a discretionary basis These options are subject to between two and three-year
vesting conditions

The farr value of the employee services received In exchange for the grant of the options 15 recognised
as an expense The total amount to be expensed over the vesting pencd 1s determined by reference to
the fair value of the optrons granted, excluding the impact of any nen-market vesting conditions {for
example, profitability and revenue growth targets) Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest It recognises the impact of
the revision to cniginal estimates, If any, in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity In the event of amendments to option schemes the farr value of the scheme s assessed
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immediately before and after the amendment and any change in the farr value 1s recognised In the
income statement over the remaining vesting penod

The proceeds received net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised

The Group has applied IFRS2 ‘Share based payments' and has adopted the Black-Scholes model for
the purposes of computing ‘fair value' for the EMI schemes

Deferred tax i1s also provided based upon the expected future tax deductions relating to share based
payment transactions and Is recognised over the vesting penod of the scheme concerned

Customer acquisition costs

The Group defines these as subsidised hardware, free hardware and credits which can be used against
equipment or rentalflusage billing which the chent 1s entitled te over the Iife of therr fixed term contract
These costs are booked in full to the income statement as soon as the customer 1s entitled to start
drawing down on these substdies, normally when the customers’ services commence or a fixed period
after commencement, unless otherwise specified in the contract

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life such as goodwill are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes In circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An
impairment loss I1s recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's far value less costs to sell and
value in use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately :dentifiable cash flows (cash-generating units) Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date

Dividend distribution

Dividend distnbution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recognised as a liability in the Group's financial
statements in the penod in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised imitially at far value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are
subsequently carrned at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value 1s recognised In the income statement over the pernod of the borrowings using
the effective interest method

Fees paid on the estabishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it 15 probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down To the extent there 1s no
evidence that it 1s probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down, the fee I1s capitalised as a
pre-payment for lquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbligation {legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, 1t i1s probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate
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can be made of the amount of the obligation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of
the expenditure required to settte the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value
where the effect 1s matenal

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items of income or expense that are disclosed separately in the financial
statements where 1t I1s necessary to do so to provide further understanding of the financial performance
of the group due to the stgnificance of therr nature or amount

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The key assumphtions concerning the present and future key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant nsk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and labilities within the next financial year are discussed below

Impairment of goodwill The Group determines whether goodw!ll 1s impaired at least on an annual
basis This requires an estimation of the ‘value in use’ of the cash-generating uruts to which the goodwill
15 allocated Estimating a value in use amount requires management to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit (CGU} and also to choose a suitable discount
rate 1n order to calculate the present value of those cash flows Sensitivity analysis 1s undertaken on the
weighted average cost of capital and the future growth assumptions for the individual CGU's

Deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences to the extent that it 1s
more likely than not that taxable profit will be avalable against which the timing differences can be
utiised Management judgement 1s required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies Refer to note 15 where the impact of the change in tax rates is considered

Share based payment. The estimation of the fair value of share ¢ptions and other equity instruments at
the date of therr grant requires management to make estimates concerning the number of employees
kely to exercise together with the expected volatility of, and dividends payable on the underlying shares
and the time at which employees are likely to exercise vested options

Receivables. Recelvables are recognised to the extent that they are judged recoverable Management
reviews are performed to estimate the level of provision required for rrecoverable debt Provisions are
made specifically against invoices where recoverability 1s uncertain

Value of intangibles. The valuation of intangibles on acquisition requires management estimates and
Judgements n relation to the valuation of separately identifiable assets and contingent liabilities

3 Segmental information

IFRS 8, “Operating Segments” requires identification of the Group’s segments on the basis of the internal
reporting about components of the Group that Is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to
allocate resources and to assess performance

The chief operating deciston maker has been identified as the Board The Board reviews the Group's internal
reporting In order to assess performance and allocate resources The Board assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on revenue and gross profit The reportable segments of the Group are
Telephony Services and Advanced Solutions
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Telephony Services consists of the Group's Fixed Voice and Mobile Voice services Advanced Solutions
includes the installation and maintenance of telephone systems, the integration of computer networks, the
provision of managed hosting solutions and the provision of biting faciities

For the year ended 30 September 2015

Telephony Advanced
Services Solutons Total
£'000 £:000 £'000
Total segment revenue 68,941 78,189 147,130
Inter segment revenue - {314) {314}
Revenue from external customers 68,941 77,875 146,816
Gross Profit 31,368 29,335 60,703
Operating costs (45,603}
Finance income 3
Finance costs (1,297)
Profit before taxation 13,806
Adjusted EBITDA 22,051
For the year ended 30 September 2014 (restated) Telephony Advanced
Services Solutions Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Total segment revenue 71,760 63,215 134,975
Inter segment revenue - (562) (562)
Revenue from external customers 71,760 62,653 134,413
Gross Profit 31,099 24,213 55,312
Operating costs {43,772)
Finance income 25
Finance costs {1,202}
Profit before taxation 10,363
Adjusted EBITDA 19,5591

Assets and liabilities, operating profit, finance income, finance costs and taxation are not disclosed by
segment as they are not reported to the chief operating decision maker

Transachons with the largest customer of the Company are less than 10% of Group revenue

All sales have taken place within the United Kingdom and those between segments are all carnied out on
arm's length basis

All non-current assets are located within the United Kingdom




Alternative Networks pic 60 .

4 Analysis of gross profit and operating costs

30 September 30 September
2015 2014 {Restated}

£'000 £'000
Revenue 146,816 134,413
Cost of sales (86,113) (79,101)
Gross profit 60,703 55,312
Selling and distribution costs (15,966) (14,025)
Administrative expenses (29,637) (29,747)
Operating profit 15,100 11,540

5 Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging

30 September 30 September

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,681 1,208
Amortisation of intangible assets 4,874 4,286
Income from property exit 3,299 2
Operating lease charges - land and buildings 1,230 918
Operating lease charges - motor vehicles 55 54 |
£'000 £'000

Auditors' remuneration

- fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of

Parent Company and consolidated financial statements 89 103
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and associates for

other services-

- fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the

Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 82 82
Total audit fees 171 185
- services relating to taxation 11 31
- corporate finance services 73 116
- all other services 48 38
Total non-audit fees 132 185

During the year, with the approval of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Finance team of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who are also the Group’s auditors, performed corporate finance work on
certain non-recurring projects The fee in respect of this work was £73,350
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6 Key management costs and employee information
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Key management I1s defined as members of the Group's Executive Board, plus selected other senior

managers

30 September 30 September
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Key management compensation
Short term employee benefits 2,043 1,917
Post employment benefits 83 54
Share based payments 1,078 419
3,204 2,390
30 September 30 September
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Directors' aggregate emoluments
Short term employee benefits 1,525 1,712
Other benefits 13 71
Post employment benefits 100 74
1,638 1,857

The amounts set out above include remuneration In respect of the highest paid director of £414,023 (2014
£636,113) The highest paid director also received £50,000 (2014 £38,500) of money purchase pension
scheme contributions and exercised nil (2014 nil) share options dunng the year

Edward Spurner resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 30 September 2015 [In addition to the amounts in
the table an additional amount of £302,209 was paid following the year ended 30 September 2015 in respect

of bonus and other compensatory payments ]

During the year four directors (2014 five) accrued retrement benefits under money purchase pension

schemes

The aggregate amount of gains made by directors on the exercise of share options was £nil (2014 £nil) No

directors (2014 four} exercised share options during the year

The average monthly number of persons (including executve Directors) employed by the Group and

Company during the year was

Group Group Company Company

30September  30September 30 September 30 September

2015 2014 {Restated) 2015 2014

Number Number Number Number

By activity

Selling and distnbution 37 346 158 95
Administration 233 224 100 181
610 570 258 276
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Group Group {ompany Company
30September  30September 30 September 30 September
2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 34,390 31,296 12,846 11,482
Social security costs 4,172 3,772 1,850 1,581
Employee share scheme charges 1,078 419 1,078 415
Other pension costs - defined contrnibution plans 867 762 402 356
40,507 36,249 16,176 13,838
7 Finance income
30 September 30 September
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Interest receivable on bank deposits 3 25
8 Finance costs
30 September 30 September
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Interest cost on bank loans 1,294 1,202
9 Taxation
30 September 30 September
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Current tax:
Tax on profit in year 3,101 2,261
Adjustments in respect of prior years (784} {43)
Total current tax 2,317 2,218
Deferred tax:
Ongination and reversal of iming differences 22 67
Total deferred tax credit 22 67
Total tax chargg 2,339 2,285
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The current tax assessed for the year of 17 0% (2014 22 1%) 1s lower (2014 higher) than the average rate
of corporation tax In the UK of 20 5% (2014 22%) applied to the profits before tax for the year due to a
further reduction tn the standard rate of corporation tax for the year (from 22 0% to 20 5%), the recognition of
prior year R&D credits that have been successfully recetved in the current year and profit ansing on the sale
of a property for which certain indexation allowances have been applied The differences are explained

below

30 September 30 September

2015 2014

£'000 £000
Profit before taxation 13,806 10,363
Profit on ordinary activities multiphed by average rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 20 5% (2014 22%) 2,830 2,280
Effects of:
Amounts not deductible 379 1,441
Deduction in relation to exercise of share options (255) (393)
Share option charge not deductible 221 92
Indexation allowance on sale of property {219) -
Utihsation of losses 167 (1,092)
Adjustments in respect of prior years R&D {784) (43)
Total tax charge 2,339 2,285

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Apnl 2015
Accordingly, the Group’s profits for this accounting period are taxed at an effective rate of 20 5% Further
changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the 8 July 2015 Budget Statement These
include reductions to the main rate to 19% from 1 Apnl 2017 and to 18% from 1 Apni 2020 As these
changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date their effects are not included in these

financial statements

10 Dividends
30 September 30 September
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
2014 Final Paid - 9 60p (2013 8 60p) per 0 125p ordinary share 4,643 4,194
2015 First Interim Pard - 5.50p (2014 4 90p) per 0 125p ordinary sl 2,662 2,370
7,305 6,564

The 2014 proposed final dividend of 9 60 pence per 0 125p ordinary share (2013 8 60 pence) was paid on
30 January 2015 The amount of dividend paid was £4,643,000 (2014 £4,194,000)

The Company pard a 2015 intenm dividend of 5 50 pence per 0 125p ordinary share (2014 4 90 pence}, with
a total payment value of £2,662,000 (2014 £2,370,000) This was paid on 15 July 2015 to shareholders on

the register on 19 June 2015

In addition, the Directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 30 September
2015 of 10 9 pence per 0 125p ordinary share (2014 9 60 pence) which will require an estimated £5,280,000
of shareholders’ funds (2014 £4,644,000) Assuming it 1s approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting on 27 January 2016, it will be paid on 29 January 2016 to shareholders who are on the
register of members at 4 January 2016 with an “ex-dividend” date of 31 December 2015
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11 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and fully diluted earnings per ordinary share 1s based on the profit attributable to
owners of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue durnng the year

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue is adjusted to
assurne conversion of all dilutive potental ordinary shares The Group has one category of potential ordinary
shares those share options granted to employees where the exercise price 1s less than the average pnice of
the Company's ordinary share during the year

The profit and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out below

Profit attnbutable Weighted average

to owners of the of £0 00125 Pershare

company ordinary shares amount

Basic and fully diluted earnings per share £'000 Number Pence
2015 Earnings pershare - basic 11,467 48,212,619 238
Potentially dilutive shares - 940,364 (O 5)
2015 Earnings pershare - diluted 11,467 49,152,983 233
2014 Earnings per share - basic 8,078 47,709,701 i69
Potentially dilutive shares - 888,307 (0 3)
2014 Earnlngs per share - difuted 8,078 48,598,008 166

The adjusted EPS Is based on the adjusted profit after tax as set out 1n note 28, and the weighted average
number of shares as described above

Weighted average

of £0 00125 Per share

Adjusted profit ordinary shares amount

Basic and fully diluted earnings per share aftertaxation Number Pence
2015 Earnings per share - basic 13,681 48,212,619 284
Potentially dilutive shares - 940,364 {0 6)
2015 Earnings per share - diluted 13,681 49,152,983 278
2014 Earnings per share - basic 12,852 47,708,701 269
Potentially dilutive shares - 888,307 {0 5)
2014 Earnings per share - diluted 12,852 48,598,008 264

Share option costs included within adjusted profit attributable to owners of the company are reducing the
earnings per share in 2015 by 2 7p (2014 1 1p)

There were 49,729,817 shares In 1ssue at 30 September 2015 (2014 49,688,544) The weighted average
number of shares during the year was 48,212,619 (2014 47,709,701)




Alternative Networks plc 65

12 Intangible assets

Purchased Customer
Group customer c:oTt::’z::; contracts and Tradenames Technology Goodwill Total
contracts relationships

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 October 2013 1,662 3,363 11,231 757 1,007 19,560 37,580
Additions - 1,230 - - - - 1,230
Acquisitions - 461 21,203 - 890 32,347 54,901
At 30 September 2014 1,662 5,054 32,434 757 1,897 51,907 93,711
Additions - 1,285 - - - - 1,295
Acquisitions - - - - - - -
At 30 September 2015 1,662 6,349 32,434 757 1,897 51,907 95,006
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 October 2013 1,662 2,208 7,089 736 985 - 12,680
Charge for the year - 790 3,286 21 189 - 4,286
At 30 September 2014 1,662 2,998 10,375 757 1,174 - 16,966
Charge for the year - 1,175 3,476 - 223 - 4,874
At 30 September 2015 1,662 4,173 13,851 757 1,397 - 21,340
Net book amount
At 30 September 2015 - 2,176 18,583 - 500 51,907 73,167
At 30 September 2014 - 2,056 22,059 - 723 51,907 76,745
At 30 September 2013 - 1,155 4,142 21 22 19,560 24,900

Amortisation has been charged through the income statement within operating costs
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Purchased
Company customer Computer Goodwill Total
contracts software

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 October 2013 759 3,894 1,763 6,416
Additions - 1,081 - 1,081
At 30 September 2014 759 4,975 1,763 7,497
Additions - 766 - 766
Acquisitions - - - -
At 30 September 2015 759 5,741 1,763 8,263
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 October 2013 759 2,454 - 3,213
Cha rge for the year - 848 - 848
At 30 September 2014 759 3,302 - 4,061
Charge for the year - 951 - 951
At 30 September 2015 759 4,253 - 5,012
Net book amount
At 30 September 2015 - 1,488 1,763 3,251
At 30 September 2014 - 1,673 1,763 3,436
At 30 September 2013 - 1,440 1,763 3,203

The carrying amounts of goodwill by reportable segment are as follows,

Group Group Company Company

30 September 30 Septemher 30 September 30 September

2015 2014 2015 2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Telephony Services 5,685 5,685 1,436 1,436
Advanced Solutions 46,222 46,222 327 327
51,507 51,907 1,763 1,763

Each operating segment I1s deemed to be a Cash Generating Unit (CGU), being the lowest level for which
cash flows are separately dentifiable Goodwill 1s attributed to each CGU and reviewed for the purposes of
the annual impairment review as this 1s the level that management monitors goodwill The Group's operating
segments to which goodwill has been allocated are Mobile Voice and Advanced Solutions

During the year goodwil! in respect of each cash generating unit was tested for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36 All CGUs were assessed to have a value in use in excess of their respective carrying values,
and hence no impairments to goodwill were considered necessary

The key assumptions in the value 1n use calculations were

The forecasts were based on pre-tax cash flows derived from approved budgets for the 2016-2018 financial
years Management believes the forecasts are reasonably achievable based on market performance and its
expectations of market developments The directors consider that the key metric in the forecasts I1s earnings
before interest, tax and amortisation Subsequent cash flows were extrapolated using a 1 0% (2014 1 0%)
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growth rate reflecting an approximate forecasted long term growth rate for the UK economy, the Group's
principal market

The pre-tax discount rate used to assess the carrying value of goodwiil Is 97% (2014 10 0%) which
approximates the Group’s weighted average cost of capital This discount rate has heen calculated on a
consistent basis

The review performed at the year-end did not result in the impairment of goodwill for any cash generating
unit as the estimated recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount in all cases The Group undertakes
sensitvity analysis based on reasonably possible changes in assumptions by Iincreasing the weighted
average cost of captal and reducing future growth expectations in the model The results of this analysis
show no indication of impairment

13 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Leasehold Plant and Motor

Group buldings Improvements equipment Vehicles Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Costs
At 1 October 2013 1,646 640 3,877 8 6,171
Additions - 60 784 - 844
Acquisitions - - 1,809 - 1,809
Disposals - (19) (460) - (479)
Transfer to asset held for sale {1,646) - - - (1,646)
At 30 September 2014 - 681 6,010 8 6,699
Additions - 2,189 2,114 - 4,303
Disposals - {450) {12} - {462)
At 30 September 2015 - 2,420 8,112 8 10,540
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 October 2013 227 573 3,086 8 3,894
Charge for the year 18 28 1,162 - 1,210
Disposals - (19) (460) - (479)
Transfer to asset held for sale (245) - - - (245)
At 30 September 2014 - 582 3,788 8 4,380
Charge for the year - 146 1,535 - 1,681
Disposals - (424) {12} - {436)
At 30 September 2015 - 304 5,311 8 5,623
Net book amount
At 30 September 2015 - 2,116 2,801 - 4,917
At 30 September 2014 - 99 2,222 - 2,319
At 30 September 2013 1,419 67 791 - 2,277

Included within leasehold additions in 2015 1s £0 3m of non-cash dilapidation provisions relating to the new
property leases entered into during the year at 240 Blackfriars Road and 1 The Crescent Surbiton

Depreciation has been charged through the income statement within operating costs
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Land and Leasehold Plant and Motor
Company buildings Improvements equipment Vehicles Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Costs
At 1 October 2013 1,646 576 2,851 8 5,081
Additions - - 378 - 378
Disposals - {19) (311} - {330
Transfer to asset held for sale {1,646) - - - {1,646)
At 30September 2014 - 557 2,918 8 3,483
Additions - 2,184 657 - 2,841
Disposals - {450) (0) - {450}
At 30 September 2015 - 2,291 3,575 8 5,874
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 October 2013 227 535 2,450 8 3,220
Charge for the year 18 10 284 - 272
Disposals - {19) (308) - {327)
Transfer to asset held for sale (245) - - - {245)
At 30 September 2014 - 526 2,386 8 2,920
Charge for the year - 126 375 - 501
Disposals - {424) (0) - {424)
At 30 September 2015 - 228 2,760 8 2,997
Net book amount
At 30 September 2015 - 2,063 814 - 2,877
At 30 September 2014 - 31 532 - 563
At 30 September 2013 1,419 41 401 - 1,861
14 Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Company
£'000
1 October 2014 78,599
30 September 2015 78,599
The following 15 a full hst of subsidiary undertakings of the Group
Subsidiary undertakings Country of incorporation _ Class of holdings Principal actvities Holding Company %
Echo Communications Limited Engtand & Wales Ordinary Dormant 100%
Aurora Kendrick lames imited  England & Wales Ordinary Billing Services 100%
Scalable Communications plc England & Wales Ordinary Network Integrator 100%
Intercept IT Lmited England & Wales Ordinary IT services provider 100%
Control Circle Limited England & Wales Ordinary IT services provider 100%
Alternative Cloud Services Lid England & Wales Ordinary Dormant 100%

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets
and future expected cash flows
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15 Deferred taxation
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Deferred taxation provided for in the financial statements 1s set out below Deferred income tax assets are
recognised for tax losses carned forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits 1s probable There were no un-recognised amounts of deferred tax at 30 September

2015 (2014 none)

The movement in the deferred tax during the year was as follows

Capital
allowances
temporary Share based

Asset differences payments Tax losses Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
1O0ctober 2013 335 63 - 398
Acquisitions 114 - 1,736 1,850
Credited/(charged) to income statement 195 83 {1,092) (814)
Credited to equity - 12 - 12
30 September 2014 644 158 644 1,446
Credited/(charged} to iIncome statement (479) 232 {644) (891)
Credited to equity - 4 4
30 September 2015 165 394 - 559
Company
1 October 2013 244 63 - 307
Credited/(charged) to income statement {65) 83 - 18
Credited to equity - 12 - 12
30Septemher 2014 179 158 - 337
Acquisitions -
Credited/{charged) to income statement (812) 232 - {580)
Reclassifed to Deferred Tax Liability 239 - 239
Credited to equity 4 - 4
30 September 2015 (394) 394 - 0
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Intangible
Assets
Liability Total
£'000
Group
1 October 2013 {885}
Acquisition of subsidiary (4,419)
Credited to income statement 747
30 September 2014 (4.557)
Credited to income statement 870
30September 2015 {3,687}

The deferred tax on capital allowances temperary differences anses mainly from leasehold additions in the
year where the tax written down value varies from the net book value The deferred tax liability in the
Company has presented within deferred tax assets in the Group, as these amounts are likely to be realised
over a similar penod of ime

Deferred tax assets and labilities are analysed as follows

Group Group Company Company
30 September 30September 30September 30September
2015 2014 2015 2014
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after
more than 12 months 698 444 73 212
Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12
months 100 1,002 43 125
Asset at 30 Septembher 798 1,446 116 337
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabihties to be recovered after
more than 12 months (2,818) (3,818) (239) -
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within
12 months (870) (739) - -
Asset at 30 September {3,687) {4,557) (239) -
16 Asset held for sale
Group Group Company Company
30 September  30September  30September 30 September
2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £9000 £'000 £'000
Property - 1,401 - 1,401

The Company entered into a binding agreement on 6 August 2014 to sell its freehold interest at Chatfield
Court and completed the transaction in April 2015 for gross proceeds of £3 8m resulting 1n a gain on disposal
of £2 4m
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17 Inventories
Group Group Company Company
30September 30 September  30September 30 September
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £'000 £000
Fimished goods 1,293 327 - 2

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense and charged to cost of sales during the year was
£18,942,000 (2014 £13,458,000)

18 Trade and other receivables

Group Group Company Company

30 September2015 30 September 2014 30September 2015 30 September 2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Trade receivables 12,893 12,005 4,154 3,75%
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - - 2,677
Prepayments 7,881 6,723 1,527 1,174
Accrued income 7,433 7,870 5,023 5,445
Other receivables 81 100 78 97
28,288 26,788 10,782 13,152

The amounts noted above represent the fair value of trade and other receivables

At 30 September 2015, trade receivables of £332,000 (2014 £739,000) were impaired and fully provided for
The Group Is satisfied that the majonty of its clients are of sound creditworthiness This view 1S further
supported by the willingness of our credit insurers to provide cover In the majonty of cases The ageing of the
trade receivables which are past due and not impaired 1s as follows

Group Group Company Company
30 September 2015 30 September 2014 30September 2015 30September 2014
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

31-60 days 1,416 2,693 15 442
61-90 days 418 267 112 79
Over 90 days 844 296 461 14

2,678 3,256 588 535
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Movement of the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables 1s as follows

Group Company

£'000 £'000

At 10ctober 2013 505 234
Provision acquired 818 -
Receivable written off duning the year as uncollectible {842) (67)
Unused amounts reversed {280) (130}
Prowision for receivables impairment 538 215
At 30 September 2014 738 252
Receivable writen off during the year as uncollechible {83) (83)
Unused amounts reversed (511) (42)
Provision for receivables impairment 187 134
At 30 September 2015 332 260

The creation and release of a provision for impaired receivables has been included in operating costs in the
income statement Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there 1s no

expectation of recovernng additional cash

Management regularly reviews the outstanding receivables and do not consider that any further impairment

Is required

The other asset classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets

19 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Group Company Company
30 September 30 September  303September 30 September
2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Cash 2,362 3,793 467 720
20 Called up share capital
Group and Group and
Company Company
30September 30 September
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Authorised
80,000,000 (2014 80,000,000) ordinary shares of 0 125p (2014 0 125p) each 100 100
Issued fully paid up
49,729,817 (2014 49,688,544} ordinary shares of 0 125p (2014 0 125p) each 62 62
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Movement tn shares In 1ssue

2015 2014
Shares Shares
Ordinary shares of 0.125p each
At 1 October 49,688,544 49,662,667
Issued under share option schemes 3,673 25,877
Matching shares under SIP scheme 17,600 -
At 30 September 49,729,817 49,688,544

During the year 23,673 shares were 1ssued under share option schemes as follows,

5,008 1ssued at 102 5p resulting 1n a share premium of £5,127

18,665 1ssued at 150 5p resulting in a share premium of £28,067

17,600 1ssued at nil cost resulting in a share premium of nil These share relate to the Company’s new SIP
scheme (note 26)

21 Trade and other payables

Group Group Company Company

30 September 2015 30 September 2014 30 September 2015 30 September 2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £1000
Trade payables 13,018 13,764 6,143 6,988
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 14,196 9,262
Other taxation and social secunity costs 3,862 2,877 1,738 1,626
Other payables 1,196 882 987 656
Accruals and deferred income 23,125 19,556 10,142 6,971
41,201 37,079 33,206 25,503

Secured payables

Included in trade payables are the following secured balances

Group Group Company Company

30 September2015 30 September2014 30 September2015 30 September 2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Telefonica UK Limited 2,38 2,518 2,384 2,518
Vodafone Limited 1,255 985 1,255 985

On 27 May 2002, the Group granted lega! charges to each of the above companies 0 respect of the
balances owing to them under the terms of the service provider agreements both dated 27 May 2002

The legal charges are secured on the subscriber bases of the Group on each network, and the book debts
ansing thereon, together with any amount standing to the credit of the companies in any designated account

In additton, on 27 May 2009 the Group gave a guarantee to Barclays Bank plc in favour of Telefonica UK

Limited, in respect of £100,000 The guarantee 1s secured on a fixed and floating charge on the assets of the
Company, registered on 19 December 2002
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22 Borrowings
Group Group Company Company
30September 2015 30September 2014 30September 2015 30September 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Current
Bank [oans - secured - 666 - 666
Bank loans - unsecured 6,598 4,445 6,598 4,445
Current borrowings 6,598 5111 6,598 5111
Non- current
Bank loans - unsecured 14,500 27,970 14,500 27,970
Non-current borrowings 14,500 27,970 14,500 27,970

Further details of borrowings are disclosed in note 23 The secured bank loan in the prior year related to the
Group's mortgage over the property at Chatfield Road which was subsequently sold in Apnl 2015 (note 16)

23 Financial instruments

The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash, bank loans, bank facilities and various items such as trade
and other recewables and trade and other payables that arise directly from s operations Al financial

instruments are denominated in Pound Sterling

The fair vatue of financial assets and liabilities 1s approximately equal to their book values

2015 2014
Group at 30 September Loa!ns and Loans and
receivables receivables
£'000 £'000
Financial assets per balance sheet
Trade and other recervables (less prepayments) 20,406 20,065
Cash and cash equivalents 2,362 3,793
22,768 23,858
2015 2014
Company at 30 September Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
£'000 £'000
Financial assets per balance sheet
Trade and other receivables (less prepayments) 9,255 11,978
Cash and cash equivalents 467 720
9,722 12,698

The Group’s financial assets include cash at bank and deposits at the year end Interest 1s received on cash
deposits at vanable rates primanly based on the relevant bank rate Al cash at bank and cash deposits are
held in Sterhng Management monitors the creditworthiness of financial institutions where cash and cash
equivalents are held on a regular basis
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2015 2014
Group at 30 September Loafns and Loans and
receivables recervables
£'000 £'000
Financial liabilities per balance sheet
Trade and other payables {less deferred income and
statutory habilities) 26,428 25,367
Secured bank loans - 666
Unsecured bank loans 21,097 32,415
47,525 58,448
2015 2014
Loans and Loans and
Company at 30 September receivables receivables
£'000 £'000
Financial liabilities per balance sheet
Trade and other payables (less deferred income and
statutory habilities) 31,194 23,455
Secured banklcans - 666
Unsecured bank loans 21,098 32,415
52,292 56,536
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On 23 January 2014, the Group entered into 2 £43 million senior term and revolving facility to support the
Group’s acquisition strategy This was spht between a £23m term loan facility and a £20m revolving credit
facihty

The term loan I1s repayable in half-yearly instalments over a 3 year period commencing July 2014 The
revolving facilty 1s due for renewal on 23 January 2018 Interest is calculated on LIBOR plus a margin
dependent on the value of the Leverage covenant

Secured bank loans had fixed charges over the long leaseho!d property at Chatfield Court During the year
the property was sold and the proceeds partially used to extinguish the secured loans

The Group’s borrowings are subject to financial covenants tested quarterly The principal financial covenants
under the facility are maximum net debt to EBITDA of 2 5 times, progressively dropping to 2 0 times in the
final year of the facility, mirumum interest cover of 5 times, and minimum cash flow to debt service of 10
times At 30 September 2014 and 2015 all of these covenants were achieved

The Group’s operations expose It to a variety of financial nsks The Group has in place a risk management
programme that seeks to limit adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by using a mix of
financial instruments

a) Foreign exchange nsk — The Group 1s exposed to mintmal foreign exchange rsk as the Group
operates almost wholly within the United Kingdom In addition, substantially all of the Company
assets and llabiities are held in Pound Sterling so sensitivity analysis 1s deemed unnecessary
regarding foreign exchange risk

b) Interest rate nsk — The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but i1s exposed to interest
rate risk as it borrows funds at floating interest rates As at 30 September 2015 the only floating rate
to which the Group was exposed was LIBOR The Group did not enter into any hedgtng transactions
during the year (2014 none)

c) Credit nsk — Credit nsk refers to the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting 1n financial loss to the Group The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with credit
worthy counterparties and this policy has been implemented by requinng staff to carry out
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appropriate credit checks on customers before sales commence The amount of exposure to any
individual counterparty 1s subject to a hmit, which 1s reassessed at least annually The Group also
insures all debts greater than £2,500 where accepted, with a leading credit Insurance company

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries across
the United Kingdom Ongoing credit evaluation i1s performed on the financial condition of accounts
receivable The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure to any single counterparty
or any Group of counterparties having similar charactenstics The Group defines counterparties as
having similar characteristics If they are connected entities

Credit nsk may also arnse from deposits with banks It 1s the Group’s policy that deposits are only
made with banks that have high credit scores and deposits are split between multiple banks

d) Luquidity nsk — The group has developed an appropriate quidity nsk framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium, and long-term funding and hquidity nsk management requirements
The Group manages quidity nsk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities through cash flow forecasting, acquisiton planming and monitoning working
capital and capital expenditure requirements on an ongoing basis

For the foreseeable future, the Group 1s expected to be in a net borrowings position The table below
analyses the Group's financial lhabilihes into relevant matunty groupings based on the balance
remaining at the perod to the contractual matunty date These amounts disclosed In the table are
the contracted undiscounted cash flows

Group Within 1 year 1-2years 2-5years  More than S years
Year ended 30 September 2015 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Borrowings 6,558 9,000 5,500 -

Trade and other payables (less deferred income and

statutory liabilities) 26,428

Year ended 30 September 2014

Borrowings 5,111 7,000 20,970

Trade and other payables (less deferred income and

statutory liabilities) 25,367 - - -
Company Within 1year 1-2 years 2-5years  More than Syears
Year ended 30 September 2015 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Borrowings 6,598 9,000 5,500 -
Trade and other payables (less deferred income and

statutory habilities) 31,194 - - -

Year ended 30 September 2014

Borrowings 5111 7,000 20,970 -
Trade and other payables (less deferred income and
statutory habilities) 23,455 - -

The outflow of financial liabiliies will not be eariier than the pernods stated and neither will they be
significantly different to those indicated

A summary of the undrawn facilities the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk 1s
shown below
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Group Group
30September  30September Company Company
2015 2014 30September2015 30 September 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Undrawn faahties
Unsecured bank loan 14,500 8,000 14,500 8,000
14,500 8,000 14,500 8,000

The revolving facility 1s due for renewal on 23 January 2018

e) Caprtal nsk — The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern In order to provide returns to shareholders The capital structure of the
Group consists of net debt, which includes borrowings (note 22) and cash and cash equivalents, and
equity attnbutable to owners of the parent, compnsing issued share capital (note 20), 19 other
reserves and retained earnings See above for details of the Group's borrowing faciities arranged in
2014

24 Cash generated from operations

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2015 2014
Group £'000 £1000
Operating Profit 15,100 11,540
Adjustments for
Depreaation of property, plant and equipment 1,681 1,208
Amortisation of intangible assets 4,874 4,286
Employee share scheme charges 1,309 419
{Profit)/loss on sale of tangible assets (2,399) 2
Movements in working capital
Inventories (966) {144)
Trade and other receivabtes {1,594) a5
Trade and other payables 3,874 (1,239)
Cash ge_nerated from operations 21,879 16,167
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Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2015 2014
Company £'000 £000
Operating Profit 10,634 11,300
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 501 272
Amaortisation of intangible assets 951 848
Employee share scheme charges 1,309 419
{Profit)/loss on sale of tangible assets (2,399) 2
Movements 1n working capital
Inventories 3 1
Trade and other receivables 130 (564)
Trade and other payables 9,444 8,511
Cash generated from operations 20,573 20,789
30September 30 September
2015 2014
Consolidated movement of net debt £'000 £'000
Net decrease 1n cash and cash equivalents (1,431j (14,137)
Capitalisation of loan fees - 724
Net decrease/(increase) in baorrowings 12,183 (32,955)
Total cash flows in net debt 10,752 (46,368)
Amortisation of loan fees (198) (132)
Net debt at beginning of year {29,289) 17,211
Net debt at end of year {18,735} {29,289}

25 Other commitments
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At 30 September 2015 the Group and Company had minimum future lease commitments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows

Group Group Company Company
30September  30September  30September 30 September
2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £000 £'000 £1000
Land and buildings
Expiry date
Within one year 504 628 280 413
Between ane and two years 1,733 580 1,505 410
Between two and five years 4,898 946 4,469 523
7,135 2,154 6,258 1,346
Group Group Company Company
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Motor vehicles
Expiry date
Withen one year 32 47 - -
Between one and two years 2 32 - -
Between two and five years - 2 - -
34 81 - -
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Duning the year the Group entered into property lease contracts at 240 Blackfriars Reoad and 1 The Crescent
Surbiton As a result of a rent free period on the property at 240 Blackfriars Road, the commitment within
one year 1S zero

26 Share based payments
Share option plans

During the year the Company has set up a new HMRC-approved all employee Share Incentive Plan (SIP)
Employees may purchase new shares with the award of free matching shares under a two to one ratio up to
a maximum of £1,800 total contribution per annum Matching Shares are subject to a three year holding
period and may be forfeited in certain circumstances during this tme  The executive directors are eligible to
participate in the scheme

The Group's EMI scheme was adopted on 22 December 2004 Under the Group’s EMI Scheme, options
which are qualifying options under the Enterprise Management Incentive regime and also unapproved
options may be granted

Options under the EMI 2006 scheme are currently exercisable based on the conditions that the option holder
is still an employee of the Group and that the Group had achieved certain performance cniteria in the period 1
October 2005 to 30 September 2008 The exercise price 1s £1 025 per share which was the market value at
the date of the grant During the year ended 30 September 2015, there were 5,008 options exercised (2014
9,805) and 5,318 options lapsed (2014 nil)

Options under the EMI 2007 scheme are currently exercisable based on the conditions that the option holder
1s still an employee of the Group and the Group has achieved certain performance critena in the period 1
October 2006 to 30 September 2009 The exercise price 1s £1 505 per share which was the market value at
the date of the grant Dunng the year ended 30 September 2015, there were 16,823 options exercised
(2014 15,972) and 500 options lapsed (2014 2,145)

Options under the EMI 2008 scheme are currently exercisable based on the conditions that the option holder
i1s still an employee of the Group and certain performance criteria have been met in the peniad 3 July 2008 to
2 July 2011 The exercise price 1s £1 355 per share which was the market value at the date of the grant
During the year ended 30 September 2015, there were nil options exercised (2014 ni) and nil options
iapsed (2014 14,760)

A long term incentive plan (“LTIP") was established on 8 February 2013 Under the plan, nil cost options are
typically awarded annually and they can be exercised three years after the grant date if the option holder 15
still an employee of the Group and certain performance criteria have been met  On 12 June 2014, the Group
issued further options as part of the long term incentive plan (LTIP 2014) There were 588,374 outstanding at
30 September 2015 (2014 680,085) Options granted to executive directors are shown above

On 4 February 2015 the Group granted a series of 22,830 shares under a newly formed Company share
option plan (*CSOP 2015") followed by a further senies of 29,560 options on 26 March 2015 The options can
be exercised three years after the grant date If the option holder 1s still an employee of the Group and certain
performance cnteria have been met There were 47,870 CSOP 2015 options outstanding at 30 September
2015 (2014 nil) Options granted to executive directors are shown above

On 4 February 2015 the Group granted a senes of 589,670 shares under its newly formed long term
retention plan (“LTRP 2015 followed on 26 March 2015 by a further senes of 80,440 options The ophions
can be exercised three years after the grant date if the option holder 1s still an employee of the Group and
certain performance cnteria have been met There were 558,830 LTRP 2015 options outstanding at 30
September 2015 (2014 nil)
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Qutstanding options by scheme

Date of Grant Scheme Exercise Exercise 30 September 30 September
price (pence) period 2018 2014
18 January 2006 EMI 102 S 2008-2016 - 10 326
17 January 2007 EMI 150 & 2009-2017 18,388 35 711
3 July 2008 EMI 135 5 2011-2018 7,380 7,380
8 February 2013 LT 2013 [alll 2016-20286 139,366 139 366
18 June 2013 LTIP 2013 il 2016-2026 82,539 82,539
12 June 2014 LTIP 2014 nil 2017-2027 366,469 458,190
4 February 2015 CSOP 2015 480 2018-2025 18,510 -
4 February 2015 LTRP 2015 il 2018-2025 468,990 -
26 March 2015 CSOP 2015 479 2018-2025 29,360 -
26 March 2015 LTRP 2015 il 2018-2025 89,840 -
1,220,842 733,512

Details of the Group's Share Option Schemes are contained in the Remuneration Report on page 33

A reconciliation of option movements over the year to 30 September 2015 1s shown below

2015 2015 2014 2014

Number Weighted Number Weighted

average average exercise

exercise price price

Outstanding at 1 October 783,512 9.5p 401,361 32 8p
Granted 734,500 34.8p 508,190 nil
Forfeited (223,339) 12 6p (100,162) 23 2p
Exercised (23,673) 140.3p {25,877) 132 1p
Qutstanding at 30 September 1,271,000 211p 783,512 9 5p
Exercisable at 30 September 23,926 145.9p 53,417 139 1p

The total charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £1,309,000 (2014
£510,000) including a provision for employers national insurance contributions of £231,000 {2014 £91,000),
all of which related to equity-settled share based payment transactions

27 Related party transactions

Key management i1s defined as members of the Group's Executive Board, plus selected other senior
managers

Sales made between Group entities are eliminated in the Group financial statements The amount of revenue
and expense recognised in the Company and subsidianies financial statements are as follows

Revenue Expenses
30 September 2015 30 September 2014 30 September2015 30 Septernber 2014
£'000 £1060 £'000 £000
Alternative Networks plc - 225 224
Aurora Kendnck James Limited 314 562 -
314 562 225 224

No dividends were declared and paid to the Company by its subsidianes during the current or prior year
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Amounts payable to and recewvable from Group undertakings are unsecured, repayable on demand and
subject to a notional interest charge calculated at 0 8% per annum (2014 0 8%) These amounts are

disclosed in note 21

During the prior year Edward Spurrier settled a oan due to the Employee Benefit Trust for £277,000, which
in turn repaid the Company This related to the award of 638,400 shares to Edward Spurrier, which were

being held by the trust

28 Reconciliation to adjusted performance

i 30 September 30 Septemb;
2015 2014
{a) Reconcahation of adjusted EBITDA £'000 £'000
'_PE)flt before tax 13,806 10,363
(Adjustments
Amortisation of purchased customer contracts and other intangibles
| (exctuding computer software) 3,699 3,496
Share based payments and associated socal security expense 1,309 510
Income from property exit (3,299) -
Restructuring, acquisition and assoctated costs (c) 2,386 2,047
Adjusted profit before tax 17,900 16,416
Finance Income {3) (25)
Finance costs 1,297 1,202
(Adjusted operating profit 18184 17,593 3 |
1Add Depreaation of property, plant and equipment 1,681 1,208
IAdd Amortisation of computer software 1,176 i 790
Adjusted EBITDA 22,052 | 19,592
30 September 30September
2015 2014
{b) Reconaliation of adjusted profits for eamings per share £000 £'000
Adjusted profit before tax (see above) 17,900 16,416
Less Share based payments {1,309) (510)
Less Taxation per consolidated statement of comprehensive income (2,339) {2,285}
Less Taxation on amortisation of purchased customer contracts and other
intangibles {excluding computer software) and exceptionals {571) {769)
Adjusted profit after tax 13,681 12,852

Adjusted EPS 1s calculated on adjusted earnings after deduction of share option costs This analysis 15
provided as the Group considers it provides a truer reflection of the underlying performance of the business

and 1s common practice in the investment analyst community

(¢) Restructuning, acquisition and associated costs consist of the following:

30 September 30 September
2015 2014
£'000 £'000

Direct costs of acquisitions - 1,263
Restructuring costs 1,823 -
Redundancy costs 563 784
2,386 2,047




